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Directors” Report

for the venr ended 31 March 2007

Diear Sharcholders,

[t gives me great plessore loowelcome you an behalfof the Board of Directors o e Thirteentb Anoual General
Meeting of Al Anwar Holdings SAQG. On behall of the Board of Directors [ am pleaged to present the Annual
Report on the activities and performance of your company for the financial year ending 307 March 2007

General Economic Environment:

“The ecanomy of the country has continued prospering during 20068, GDIP grew by 168 percent over last year il
at pproximately 80 pereent over the last three years at current prices due w realized oil price which stood at Uss
G2 harrel apainst e budgeled ol price of USS 32/ barrel. O1] sector grew by 18% while non-oil sector grew by
L5.6i%. Two important noneail sectars of natural gas and teurizm grew by 81 percent and 22 percenl respeclively.
nflalion was cstimabed at 3.1 percent.

Along-with Oman, Lhe cconomies of GUC eountries also grow ohavdously for continued firmness in oil prices which
gave rise to increased outlyy in non-oil gectors oo as gl econemies in GOC are diversilying into manulacturing,
real estate developmaenl, infrastructure, tourism and hospitalily.

The MSM index concluded the year a1 5,332 with 14.5% gain while other GOC markets closed in the red registering
decline ranging from 1% to 53% barring Bahrain stock market which registered a modest gain of 1%

The Year in Retrospect :

Tn the middle of the vear the Board of Directors have install=d a new management team and have jointly placed in
motion new business strategies, investment policies and procedures and risk management tools, Moreover, Lhe
Board together with the management have linalized the Vision and Mission Statements in order to provide clear
directions and rowd map for e company to lollow over the coming years.,

A thorough and sharp review of all the existing investments was made, These reviews were found 1o be very
helpful by the Board to decids on investments that are of strategic in nature and woukil cequire mare support Al
purturing; the investments that have matured and could be divested ac a profic investment needed immedinge
technalogy partmer and investmentz thal needed further infusion of capital for sustainable growth,

The manacement on the direction of the Board ok effective steps tawards sirengthening its monitoring of
investee companies. [fective and timely guidance and suppert have yielded good results and most ol he nvestes
companics performed much better than budgeted.

The new management i@ pro active in their approach and seeling actively the imvestment opportunidics. The
managenent has alse abtained Board approval lor geographical dispersion of the investments in order Lo gel
benefit of high returns from emerging markets on the one hand and diversifying the risk on the other,

The management has put in place to a new organizational chart o order o build e company and bring in
institurional maturily (o face the futore challenges and manage sustainable prowth.
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Directors’ Report (contd.)
for the vear ended 317 March 2007

Financial Overview of Al Anwar Group:
The conanlidzgicd fingneial statements presented are an outeoame of e followsiang:

The reventes generated and the costs neurred Dy s subsidiacies, that wee Natiomal Aleminiom Froducls

Co, BADG (Mapeo), Voltamp Manulactunng Coo LLOC (VMO Switchgear & Transformer Division=), Sun

Packaging Co. LLC (5PC). Napeo bocame subsidiary in the corrent year from an agsociate company earlier

—

20 The share of Profic /£ (Loes) achieved by Associale Companiez in which Al Anwar owns between 2000 gndd 0%

al share capital,

3. Dhividends from other investnents and

EF

Realized wains made from divesoment of matured ivestmeniz,

Al Agywear group achiesed Tughest ever el profit of BO 20183 million Tor the vear ended 21% March, 2007 as againzi
anet proditol 120399 K for the vear ended 319 March, 20006 recording a stupendous inerease of 4555, We also ke
tn mention that about 4 1% of the net profit at KO C&95 K is generated out of dispozal of long term investments.

The management under an able supervision and guidance of the Board could locate, Bring ad lnally partonered
wilh wiorld renowned foreigm partner for investment casting company, Al Anwar Blank Co, SAQC during the vear,
This deal was nol only helplul in bringing technology partner and turning arownd the company bt alzo resulted
in a substantial profit on divestment of GO% stake, Similarly, the management was also successiul o divesting
entire sharchalding in Chman Abrasives LLC during the year at a substancal profi and subsequent to the balance

zheet date divestment of s entive bolding i Oman Dell Mod Prodocts LLC booking good profii,

Davestoent of matured vestment in Goean Abrasives LLC has helped the Company realize KO G43.000 s
iveslment gaing, The company bas sold s controlling stake in one of its Subsidiaries, Al Anwar & Blank Co
SADC oa Ioreign collaborator during e vear, The profil cealiaed oo sceount of his ransaction amounted (o
RO 252000, As g resull of this the status of the mvestment has changed from Subsidiary 1o Associale during ihe

VAT,

The Share-ol-prolits from Associates was at RO 103 K gs against loss of BO 18 K in the previows vear, The swing
of profit during the year is due to better performance of the associate companies and also due to regrouping ol
reaulis of WAPCO as itz atams changed from aszociate o 2ubsiuliary during the corrent vear,

The Earning per share (EF5) haz impeoved to 30 Basas o 2007 a8 agained 5 Basas i 2000 registonng an increase
of 275% on the inereased Share Capital from BO 5000 million to O 7700 million an inerease of 5405,

Met azzet of the company improved from 135 Basas per shace (o L3 Baisas per share cocording an increase of
7.25% on the increased capital,

Pruring the wear 2006507 the company bas increased its share capital from BO 2000 million e BO 7700 million
through Rights [ssue, The face value of the Kouity share was split to RO 0000 (100 Baisas) from RO LS per

share,
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Directors” Report {conud.)

for the year ended 317 March 2007

The Board of Directors i plegsed o recommend a cash dividend of 35 and stock dividend ol 15% for the current
vear (Provious Year: 55 cpsh dividend)), The Board has vecommended Directors Remmeralion of ROC18250
{Previous years Nil), Both dividend and Directors’ Remuneration are subject o approval by the shacelobdecs a1
the Anmmal General Meeting,

Performance of Al Anwar Investments:

1. Subsidiaries:

4

3

Matioanal Aluminiom Producis o, SADG: Has retsined 1= suceess b meeinees Ui gains from Buoyaney
in the mgrkeel and iz Gie downsides of competition and volatilioe in the metal prices to greater extent.
As a result, the company has reported record profit and excellent turnaround during the year 20060 Thie
company i expecled omaintain il 2uccess in e wewrs W oo,

Voltamp Manufaciuring Company LLC (and its subsidiary): Voltamp has improved s ioeover By 465
and profitability by 65% during the year as compared o the year 2003, There has been a rapad growtl i
arder hook and execution, with particular emphasis on special wanslormers. The company has improved
its production and plant wilization to meet the inereased demand, Tn view of constant orders frem Qalar the
company 1s in the advanced stage of setling up a manufacturing facility for translormers and switch gears al
Cradar with Catari pactners uncder the mome of Volluop Magufactucing Calar,

Sun Packaging Company LLC: The eapacity expansion made during the year 2005 has started yielding
results during the corrent year, The company is operaling al an average ol 85% capacity, The additional
through-put couple] with improved market mix improved the bottom line by 22%  The company is exploring
pew product lines during the coming vears,

11, Associates:

1.

[

4
LB

Al Anwar Blank Company SAOC: Continue tobeunder pressure for expanding its costomer base, However,
the new fareipn collaborator, having majority stake shall provide necessary technical and marketing support
tor prat the company back in track. The company is expected to progress well both in terms of urnever and
profitability in the coming vears and recoup its accumulated lesses soon,

Faleon Insurance Company SAOC (Falcon): Faleon entered into General Insurance usiness in Ciman
during the vear 2005, The company haz posted profits during the Gest ll vear of operation ie. 2006, New
persnnnel are heing inducted o strengthen the management. The company is cauliously improving is
performance keeping vigil co the vizk mitigaling policies,

Cran Dreilling Mud Procducrs Company LLC: The Company posted betler prelits in the current year &5
compared to previons year. The company is continuing ils contracl with the major customer and expected to
prenerale congislent returns for the investors in the near term. We waould like te mention that Al Anear has
sold ils cntive sharshelding in this company an 02007

Al Muha Ceramics Company SADC: The company was Hoated doving the year 2005 Iotap thiee webvin e
of robust growth witnessed in the real eslate market in QOman, GOC and South East Asia. The company 15
a1ill in the project implementation slage and e conunercial production is planned from third quarcter ef the



PR R S H
AL ANBAR TIOLDINGS SA00

Directors” Report (contd.)

for the year ended 317 March 2007

vear 2007, Lonking intn the growth prospects of real estate industry this investment is promising Lo give high
return o the investors.

11, Chher Investment:

Taageer Finance Company 5A0G (Taageer): In ne with company’s vision of increaging its portfolio size in
financial sector the company has acruired notable stake in Taageer. There is increase in demand for the finaneial
products amd Oman markel is poised to grow rapidly, coupled with the higher disposable income al the hands
of young population in the country shall gugment the demantd for the auto finance and other allied financial
procts,

Vision and Mission Statements:
Vision Statement A Anwar has decided on the following vision shdement fr s fuluee divectiong
Mo be a lending provate equily Dreesiaren! cosi Py ik Be Tale east it Srinaey foous on Fuancial services”

Mission Statement: In order lo provide road map for oreseeable future. e fllowing mission statement has
breen approved by the Bowrd:

Trpestments fo grroae by TGRSt 5 years to ROZE wmillion with 60% in fingrciol serpioes sector meluding fnsiranee’
Future Investments and Projects:

10 Financial Services: Al Anwar Holdings in continuation wilh realignng is mvestment stralegy, naon-cores
investrents have been divested and fresh investments woere made to improsee returns one Tnvesioments.
The company has plans to further invest in Financial Services Sector in Oman and other GOC countries
during e wears W come, The company will use all avallable resources such as internal greneralion,
divestiment proceeds and leveraging to fnance these inwestments,

T Insurance: lnsucance 1s our Iocused area and our investments in this seclor are stradegic in natore, The
Foard has therefore approved to increase our #take in Falcon Insurance Co, SAGC to 514 over the
COMINEE Yrars.

31 Thee Board has realized the utilidy of creating a rading portfolio of Bguil imvestments so that the company
could have repular stream of income for mecting s cxpenses. Witk this in view, the Board bas approsed
for ereating sueha porifolio and praduelly increase 10 corpus cver e vears woalien i with e nvestment
podicy approvel.

41 The Boared bas identified certain olber sectors for making ovesinents, Tle magor segoments are ceul
eslale and infrastructure, hospmality, oil & gas and mining.

Omanisation:

Al Anwar g5 a company and as o group bas always been in the ferefront and is fully committed of recroiting and
traiming Oanant cogdoyvees, Presenl Cooanization in the parenl company §s 5% while as o group i 15 4275,
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Directors’ Report (contdl.)
for the vear ended 319 March 2007

Corporate Governance:

Your company’s Board and Management have always Belicved in maintaining a high level of professionalisn and
integrily in all its operations. The company stands cornmitled to ully adhere to the Code el Corporale T T
issued by the Capital Market Anthority, A report on Corporate Ceovernance and also 3 Management Liscussion
and Analysis Report have been included o the Annual Report,

The Board has reviewed the exiating system of Roles, Regulations and infernal conlrels su as o ensuce (hal
they properly identily authorities ol various levels and (hal Giere is a good system of checks and Balanees in
place. Furthermore all systems and procedures will be constantly upgraded and strengthencd wineh will ensure
efliciency and lransparency,

Thanks and Appreciation:

1 would like to convey our extreme thanks and appreciation e His Majesty Sullan Qaboos Bin Said and His
Crovernment for incentives and support for all round sustainable development in the Sultanate. [would also ke
Lo thank the Capital Market Authority and the Muscat Securities Market for their guidance and suppor.

T would also like 1o express my sincere appreciation 1o the Board of Directors of all Al Anwar Croup investee
cormpanies lor direction given to the managements of these companics. @ place on record my sincere thaenles and
appreciation for the dedicated efforts of the management team and all conployees of the helding company aril the
group companies, 1 alse thenk the Bankers of our companies for their continued support 1o the Company and its
Ll b

[ wantld also like 1o convey my sincere thanks 1o the sharebolders of the company tor the conlidence they have

reposed in the company and in ils Board,

Fror & on behall of the Board of Divectors ol
Al Anvwar Holdings 2400

Masoud Humaid Al Harthy
Chairmman
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Report of Factual Findings in connection with Corporate Governance report of the Company and
application of the Corporate Governance praclices in accordance with CMA Code of Corporale
Governance {Code),

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF AL ANWAR HOLDINGS SADG

Wea have perfformed the procedures prescribed in Capital Market Authonily (CMA) circular no 162003,
cated 29 December 2003 with respect to the accompenying Corporate Govemance reporl of ihe
Company and ils application of the Corporate Sovernence practices in accordance with the ChMA's code
of corporale governance issued undar circular no. 112002 dated 2 June 2002 and its amendments. Our
engagement was undertaken in accordance with the Intematianal Standards an Auditing applicable to
ggreed-upon pracedures engagements, These procedures were performed solely to assist you in
evalualing the Company's compliznee with fhe Code as issued by the SR,

We report our findings below:

We found that the Company's Corporate Governance reporl fairly reflects the Company's application of
the provisions of the Code and is free from any material misrepresentation.

We draw your altention 1o the paragraph of non-compliznces of the Company’s report on Corporala
Governance that stales the non-compliznces with respect 0 the Code of Corporate Govermance.

Because the above procedures do not constifute cither an audil or a review mads in accordance wilh
Imernational Standards on Auditing, we do net express any assurance on the Corporale Governancs
repor

Had we performed additional procedures or had' we performed an audit or review in accorcance with
Imernational Standards on Auditing, other matters might heve come fo our sttention that would have
aeen reported 1o you,

o repen is solely for the purpose sel forth in the first paragrapn of this report and for your information
ard is not to be usad for any olher purpese. This repor relates only 1o the Board of Directors” Corparate
Governanse reporl included inits annual repen for the vear ended 31 March 2007 and does nob extend
e any financial stalements of Al Anwar Holdings SA0G, taken a5 a whaole,

13 June 2007
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Report on Corporate Governance
for the linancial vear ending March 31, 2007

1. Company philesophy

The Board of Dirsctors of A Aowar Floldinges SAOG welcemes and supports the inttiatives undertalen by
the Capilal Markets Authority (CMA) in establishing the Code of Corporate Governance for companies
Tistesd in the Muscst Securities Marlel and s comuitted towards ol adopting the Code, The adoption of
the core will enable the company to foster a culture of complianee, Iremsparency and accountability, which
in Len will Tead o efficient fonctioning of the Company,. We [ollow e prescriptions of the " International
Financial Reporting Slandards ((FRSY in the preparation of accounts and finaneial statemenls,

2. Composition of the Board of Directors
All the members of the Board are Kon-Executive Directors, sinee none of them are whole tme directors
drawing any fixed monthly or annusl salary from e Company. The seven Board members are persons of
stature with business acumen. They represent skills and expericnee in comporate management, lralegic
planning, team leadership, accounting, and sophistication of inveslment management,

3. Mectings of the Board,

The Present Board consists of soven Divectors as mentioned Delow:

Ind epemdend

; : [xater aaf erind of e Pelesder ool
Mame of Direcioer FMuon A : : Froasition ]
; Electiion Dhirecidorships Represenlaiion
indlependent |
W, Masoud Humaid halik I | Himse
Al Harthy Independent | 20005006 3 Years Chairman | Sharcholder
| | de=pnly Fancorp Investment
5] il Al Youse srenilen H A RS 3 Ve L : cE!
Mr. CQais Moluamed Al Yousef Independent | ZHH 200 IACE Ehairman | Compeioe LI
M Shabic Musa Abduilh Himsell
Al Yozl Independenl | 25900 200 3 Wenrs i ecios = Sharchalder
Hinm=eld
M Abdalredla Muostala Sultan : > ;
r Ablulredha Mustat = Lileprencleni A SO 9 Yoears Ldirectaor = Sharehalder
Vv, Wawewal Dhubash Ahmed Himsell
Al Moerri Ilependent | 2kA00 72000 T YWears Diirestor | = Shareholder
s Plobarmed Abelwlial Al Khouji
Al Ishenji L lepeenglen 206 20 A Yo Lhirector Inwvestment 142
e B ¢ Tl Al Tt Mhan IYhabi Matonal
Telr, Blarmea MHashoadl & RHERTE W] . ; : i
' Independent | 200620605 3 Years Lrirecior Food Products
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Report on Corporate Governance (contd.)
for the linancial vear ending March 31, 2007

The details of the Present Directors’ directorsbinp m olher public companies in Ciman are as (ollows.
IMetails of Directorship in (hher 2AQGSSADC Compranies
in Clrman

Lo Chairiman, Al Anwar Blank Co, 54000
M Masoud umeaid Malils A1 Harthy 2 Chairman, Al Maha Ceramies Co. SA0C
3 Chairmean, Falcon Insurance o, SAL

Mamoe of Director

I, Irector, Tasgeer Finanee Coo =2500
20 Darector, Al Avowar & Blask Co, SACH

M Shabir Musa Abdullah Al Yausef Chairman, Maticnal Alominiuem Prodoets Co, SAC0G

Mr (s RMolsumed Al Yousef

1. IDrector, Al Tasera Services Co, 5400

M Abiulredha Mustaia Sultan % Director, Al Maha Ceramics Co. SAOC

N Maaowaf Ghuobash Ahoed Al Merr Marne
b Mohamed Abdullah Al Bhonji Maacue

M Haemed Rashid A Dhaberd | Mone

The Meeting attendance fees paid to the members for each meeting attended is
(1) Cliiron = KO 4005 6@ Depuly Chairman - RO 300/ Gu) Clber Members = RO 250/

(2 The Board met seven Gmes during the vear, The Full particulars of the dates of the meetngs and
attendance of directors are mentioned below.,

| i AGM Roard Meetings held on
L IR | D040 | BAAERDE | SOAIG [ 1RTLANG | 013G | 21010406 | 11002007
I Mr. .i"rf:umud Humiaicd s | s o Vs Yos T Vs Vas
Malik Al Elarthy |
}'_Tl' {:I'!lh Molured Al Wi | Yes Yig Yis Tew i s | Wi,
2 | Yoused |
! ! — |
Mr Shabir Musa 2 . : . ;
5 Wi i Wi RS BT s Wl Yes
Abdluliah Al Yousct 5 e i e = = : ;
M Abdulredha | . . i 4

: Wi s Yis is e b W= i,

; Whestafz Sulian | 2 ; ' : s : :

= T} [

5 Mr. Nawwal (hubash o M N N Vos Yea* | Ves Yos

Ahmicd Al Merr [
Wr. Mohamed : - ; .

; W= i e W s Yo W s
“ | Abdullah Al Ehonji = £ & i o i ! R
- Me. Hamed Kashid Al Ve Mo Mo Yes e T [ Yo

Tknbiers |

At ncled by vy ol conference cal
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, Lais Mohamed "n] Youzed ies W s Yes
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Report on Corporate Governance qcontd.)

for the fnancial vear ending March 31, 2007

The Execulive Committes (EC) is a subcommittee of the Board consisting of three directors,

My, Gais Mobamed Al Youscl EC Chairman
bdr. Shabir Musa Abdullah A1 Yousel B Member
BAr Mawseal Chubash Ahmed Al Mern B Member
Ececutve Committes Meetings held an [
| Name of Director 15-Ap-06 LiFSep-Ni 13- Decdi
= ! .
i My, Oais Mabamed Al Yousel Y Yes YR
| Mr. Shabir Musa Abdullah Al Yousef W Yes Yos
| Mr. Kawwafl Ghubash Ahmed Al Mere | Yos Yes Yoz* |

The Meeling allendance lees paid to the members for cach meeting atbended waz RO 2005 for BC
Chairman and B0 1504 for EC Member,

The EC met three imes during the vear, The particulars of the dates of the meetings and attendance of
merilers are mentioned below,

=Alended by way of conlerence call

() Audit Committes

The Audit Commilies (AC) 15 a sub-committee of the Board, comprising of three Directors:

Mr. Abdulredha Muslafa Sultan AC Chairman
Wr. Qaiz Mohamed Al Yousef AC Member
Ml Mohamed Abdullaly Melvaned Al Blhongi AL Member

The Meeting attendance fees paid w the members for each meeting atended was KO 200/ for AC
Chairman and KO 1504 for AC Member,

The Audit Committee met four tmes during the vear, The Full particolars of the dates of the meetings
and altendance of members are mentioned below.
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Report on Corporate Governance (eontd.)
for the financial vear ending March 31, 2007

All the members are experienced and have fundamental knowledge of accounts and finance,

The terms of reference of the AC are in accordance with the guidelines given by CMAL The major arcas
covered by the Audit Comumilles are mallers concerning Accounts, Finance, and Compliance with
Statutory Laws, Auditors Report,

Process of nomination of directors: In nomination of candidstes, the Boaed Iooliz for profezzionalism,
integrity and leadership skills, Proven track record, industry knowledge and strategic vision are the key
characteristics, The company follows the provisions of the Commercial Companies Law in respect of
nomination of the members of Board of Direclors,

The Management members of the company are appeinted by proper contracts, clearly defining the: termes
of reference. The Chiel Executve Officer, under the supervision, direction and control of the Board,
manages the company,

Mo transactions where the management bas persenal inlecest are caroed oul in the company
The company has a system in vogue, [or prior approval by the Board for such type of trmsactions if any
arises in the normal course of business, Al the relaled party ransactons, i any, ace carried oul al arms
lengrth prices in the normal course of business. No special method of evalugtion is followed for these
tramseciions, There are oo material related party transactions where divectors bave an inferest,

Means of communication with the Shareholders and investlors:

The notice tn the Shareholders for the Annual General Meeting conlaining the details of the related
patrly transactions is [iled with CMA and mailed to shareholders along with Directors” report and andited
ACCHINDS,

The Quarterly results of the company as per CMA format, are prepared by the managemenl for every
quirter, reviewed by the Audit Committee, approved by the Board, are forwarded to CMA and also
published in the Newspapers as per the directives of CMA, Coples are made available 1o sharehelders
on request. Results are alse uploaded on the website of Muscat Securities Market (MSM). Importan:
Board decisions are disclosed o the imvestors through MSM from time to time, The company has ils
olficial websile, www, alapwarboldiogs, com for its vestors, The website (2 updated from tme o
time. The Management Discussinn and Analysis Report forms parct of the Annual Report

Remuneration matbers:

The Meeting atlendznce fees was as per the remuneration fixed by the Board. A total of RO 21,300/ (FY
DO0606: RO 5,750/} waz paid 1o Directors for meetings attended during the period 1* April ‘06 to 31%
Warch U7 as per details piven below:
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Report on Corporate Governance (contd.)

lor the financial vear ending March 31, 2007

Mamie of Direcuor 200607 AONG-0T T 2O ¢
Mo, Mazowd Humaid Malik Al Harthy ERLY wan e
M Qais Mohamed Al Yousel KLY [T (1]
M. Shabar Musa Abdullak Al Yousef 2,200 £l LGN
My, Abrlaleedha Wusialz sultan 2,550 L, 1o HY
e, Beparwent Gliohash Ahoeed Al Mern 1450 Q40 1,300
e, Hamwed Bashid Advoed Al Dhahen =L Ga

e Belohed Aldullil AL Elomngi 2300 I ]

Mpwebers for part of tie year

M Hamed Bashid Ahmed Al Dhahen 130

Mr, Faisal Mohamed Al ¥ousel 1100
Mr. Darus Frameoze 150
Total Mecting Atendanee fees 13,400 DA b7

* Approved in ALel o 200056
== Approved in AGM of SH506 il paid during 20607

The remuneralion lor the emnplovees are, gfter crtical evaluation, fixed by the Board, bascd ongualilication,
expertise and efficiency of the cxcculives, The tolal remmoneration of the Top five emploveces for Financial
Woar 200607 was 130 87 1650 (8 200506 1 KO 55,545 1,

A seheemne of incentive based on OF ardiary prolit: eacned acd (i) extva ordinary peofin due o sile of
asaels is applicable o the Chief Fxeontive Officer.

The Board has approved Directors” remuneraion of BOCTE 250 for the vear 2006407 which iz subject 1o
approval of the company’s shareholders at the Annual General Meeting to be held in June 30, 2007

Details of non-complianee by Ue compeany: Mo penalties Bave Been imposed Dy CMA or MaM o any
ather statulory hodies on the company, The gap hetween Board mecting no. 32200007 and Board meeling
ey, A4S ENEOT §s exceeding 4 months, which = pel in comypliaol withe e cequirenwents of Actcle 4 of
corpurale governance regulations to conduct hoard meeting= at intervals not exceeding four months
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Report on Corporate Governance (conu.)

for the financial vear ending March 31, 2007

Market price data: Liftective from July 20065, the free value of the share is changed 1o RO LR from

RO L per zhare,

e monthly high and low share price of e company ducing the loancial year eoded
a1 March 2007 was

Mosnith [ligh = KO L = KO
April 2006 1.506) 12003
Iy 20005 1,280 1.265
June 2006 1.260 1.150
Juby 2006 (1145 1115
".'1LL-LLILIHL 2006 (1449 - 2117 |
Seplember 20406 0134 1.141
Crotolaer 2004G R [ES 1145
Movember 200G (1.160 1145 -
.]']'r'f'f“mh:.':r ACRIR Z 5 (1LEGE {1,145
_T_.; ;T];r 2007 0164 0,146
.I-'ui:un-u:*.u_'}' 2007 ’I 159 3 0143
Flarch 2007 {1.15% ) 0,150

Distribution of Sharcholders and their share holding pattern as on 317 Maveh 2007 is given

Ma, of

Distribution Mo, of T oan
shares Share holders total shares

1 g S 00D wll a4 204 (k35
S000 ey 0D B28 230 oy 1 I-Ii*:”-'.'{.
PO e 200,060000 283 4353 &l 1.67%
20,000t S0 2GR 437 A Sk
Al SO 71,0, 056 73 03.10%

|

Total 77,000,000 573 '

1O G0 |
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Report on Corporate Governance qconul.

[or the linancial vear ending March 31, 2007

The Company does nol have any foreign GDEs / AlRs / Warrants or any other instroment ol any Lype
issued to public or institutional investors or any other class of investors,

Profeszicnal profile of the staiutory auditors

The: Oman branch of Moore Stephens commenced practice in 1885 Over the years, the praclice has
developed considerably and new services a number of clients, including major listed companies, Groups,
Crowernment organisations and Minsties peoviding elther awdit, tax or management consuliancy
services,  The local staff strength is around 30, most of whom are qualificd Chartered Accountants,
Tnternal Awditors amd information systens auditors,

Since More Slephens London was [vunded 100 vears ago, the Meore Stephens International Limited
network bas grown 1o be one of the 12 largest international accounting and consulting groups worldwide
Maore Stephens International is reearded as one of the world's majoer accounting and consulling networks
consisting of 335 independent firms with 503 offiees and over 17,000 people across 03 countries.

Specilic areas of non-compliance with the provisions of eorporate governance and reasons
This report i prepared in compliance with the Code of Corporate Governance and covers all the items
apecified in Annexure 18 4 of the Code,

Mazoud Humaid Al Harihy
Chualrman
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Management Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) Report

Industry Structure and Development:

Al Anwar Holdings SAOG is a publicly traded joint stock company registered in the Sultanate of Oman. The
Company was incorporated on 200 December 19894, The primary business activity of the company is investments,
equily participation in new and exisfing industrial and services companies in varieus sectors ol the economy.
The company began as a powerful catalyst in business development of the country. As per the demand of the
national economy, the initial focus of the company was on industrial sector, Al Appwear has oy [wesks ils credit,
Manufacture of glazed ceramic tiles, glass botlles, aluminum extrusions, power switchgears and fransformers,
flexible packaging, largest paint manufacturing in Oman, largest manufacturer of industrial abrasives and
abtaining quality certifications of 150 9001 and %002 for all its industrial ventures.

The: Board was zucces=iul in ill?i-'l.'l..l'lilll_',.'., A 1ew mnanaEeEment Wi |:|_I_||'i||j.‘r L Ccurrent Yeoar nnder the steward "'\-.I'I-l]:l of
M. Krishna Kumar Gupla as Chief Executive Officer of the company, The new management team on the advice
of the Board took some immediate steps that could be summarized as under:

1. Made athorough and in-depth review of all investments, Calegorizing them into investments: () held for
long and are now matured for divestment for gocd returns, G5) matured for foatation in the stock macket
for value enhaneement and unlocking of value, (i} srategic invesiments in insurance and financial
services sector required further increasing of stake, (ivithat required infusion of resh funds for urther
expansion, including joint venture, for up-streams of down-stream progecis for sustainable long term
erowlh and (v) that required project implementation and Turther nurturing for some Gime Lo come,

2. Brain storming for formalizing the Vision' and 'Mission” for the group.

5 Formulaling, wetting approval of the Board and putting inte motion & future five year steategic plan lor the
COMPNY,

4. Devising, petting Board approvel and implementing a clear eut investment policy and procedures wilh
investment ohjectives, investment strategies, assel allocation, tenure and size of investments, exil,
financial and operational authorities, identification of growth industrics aned visk mitigation.

5. Creation of a trading portfolio of liquid investments for regular stream of income to take care of regular
expendilures,

6. Scouting and sourcing for new investments (hal G inte e nvestment policy approved.

The management made some quick actions such as:

1. Sourcing ofa lechmology cum strategic par ner (o an investmeant o whichvarlivr teclunalogy collaboration
had breken and the investment was drilling, The timely sourcing, negotiating and concluding the deal
tliat urned out to be a win-win® deal for the forcign lechnologey com strategic partmer wowlhom controlling
stakie of 60% was divested. The divestment alse resulted in cash inflow for better liquidity and booking
investmenl profitz

2, Identification of prospective buyers for investments that reached maturty and that could be seld at &
resnannalzle profit, Two ol such vestmentz were ket on Block, A minimam zale walue for cach of thoese
divestments was worked out throwgh scientific valuation methods that were also vetled by the Investiment
Bank appointed as the pleement agent. One of (e investinents was =old at much kigher price to the
minimum threshold by effective negatiation, For the sccond one, some waiting for gelling betier price
than the minimum thresholl merned ool w e very wseful and divestment was made subsequent 1o the
alanee sheet date.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) Report (contd.)

Invidimgs management of cach wvesles company for making presentation and baving discussions on
the growth plans of their respechive companies 1 order e assess the guality of the management and

e

evatluating e sustainalile growtly plans,

4, Making a slrong represeotation on all gee investee company by jeining heir Boards and also beconuing
membeer of the subconmliess,

Close monitoring of the operating performance of the investee companies and strong follow up of the
pending izsues especially on the invenlory managemenl, working capilal manggement, receivables
conirol and sk managemeant

£n

. Identilying investment opparienities in Saudi Arahia in conformity 1o our present investment pelicy of
primary focus on linancial services seclor.

7. Ohtaining an in-principal approval from CMA Tor setting up & linancial services company in QOman.
[nvestment Portfolio:

The Investments made by Al Anwar in variows companies are clabocately explained o Directors” Beport az well
as discloscd in Mote Mo, 5 of the Financial Statements,

Opportunities:
Broadly the company bas opportundlies [rom:

1. Crowing economies, local, regiomal and global,

2. Present portiolio of investments could be leveraged for entering inlo new growth seclors such as
insurance and financial services and

3. Enlering of new markets is easier due o reasonable stoe of present nel-wortl,

Existing Investmenis:

Mest of the industrizl investmenls were held for longer period and are matured in their corrent operations. The
inveslee companies are enhancing their capacity and also expanding their product-range o meet the Oman &
GOC markers. Efforts to diversify the enstomaer base have alecady started vielding resulis

Mo [vestiments:

1. Taageer Finance Company SAOG: Tnline with realignment of business locus from Industrial e service seclor
the company has invested considerable gmount in acquisition of Taageer Finance company shares. Considering
e Danan's ecenomic development and prosperous Infea siroctuce activities in the region the finance services is
posized to prow rapicdly Al Anwar shall make wse of every opportunity 1o (he best to reap the benefits,

2, Faleon Insurance Company SAOG:  Insucance belng our stieategic invesiment, stake holding i Faleon
[nsurance Co, SAGC will be increased in the coming fow years to 51% as approved by the Board,

3. Other Investrmenta: An investment of partiogating i the couity capital o e iine of 20% in the total equity
of SR 200 million in a linancial services company in Saudi Arabia has already been approved.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) Report (conu.)

Fuemel ¥Mohilisation

The Financial Markets and Banles hive been Buovant based on the improved economic perfermance in the GOC
regrion and the continued pood cutlool for many of the Companics. Our Company has been able to leverage this
momenlum = for self and its investee Companies, by promoling new projects and seeking shareholder! banker
participation in the same. Compeany bas mobilized RO 270 million from Shareholders in April 2006, via a Rights
Izzue This would strengthen the liguidity and enhanee the steengihool Al Anwar Toldings pordiolio. Al Anwar iz
continuausly seouting for soumd projects, wlich will boprove the overall vield on invesinments.

Fusrther mobilization of resources ducioge e Y 200708 by leveraging its asset base, divestments and messanine
ilebsts woiild be explored

Creographic DHspersion

The company has created the critical maz2 and hag improved its networth taer the years. Emerging markets of
GO countries and Asia are of fering hoge current opportunites ol relatvely Jow cisk high relurnz, The geographic
dispersal of investments is also good from the point of view of diversification of rsk.

Outlook:

[he quick initintives taken by the management have given desieed results that are evident from the record probil
and everall improvermnent in the Gonancial positen of the company along-with that of group companies.

The long term actions such a2 fnalization of Yision and Mission statements have laid a clear cul path for the
management to march ahead and achieve newer milestones in vears o come. The strategic business plan, clear
cut investment policy and procedures, assel allocation, geopraphic diversilication and effective risk management
are expecied o help in a gradual and sostamable geowth for the company,

The management is fully commined o be a 2@trong costadian of the wealth of the company and e enhance i
arther and to provide higher than marked returns and satisfacton (o its shareholders and other stakeholders on
conzslenl asis,

Risk and Threats:

By and Jarge. the risks and threats to which the investee companies are exposed form a threat to AL Anawear.
Broadly, the risks take the form of increasing cosiss clecreasing mareies, compelbon fou olher sources cf
suppdy and shifis in customer preference for other solutionz

1. Ipcreasing eaw material prices: al the difficalty in shifting the cost burdern o the customer, pose a
threat o the revenues of the investee companies, which in wrn gflect the revemnoes of Al Anwar, However
proper stralegies were dreawn o overcome this threat and the company optimistic t Gde over this sitluation
i a sueeessiul manner.

2. Competition from GOC as well as international region: resulls in the drastic fall in revenues)” profits of
ivesloe cotpanies, which in furn allects the revenues profits of Al Amwear, This theeat being unavoidalle,
the investee companics conld reduce this threat by delivering quality product and service.

3. Product Shifts: [nvestment in ledustrizl anils conssts of mvesting i capital asseta Be Plant & Machinery,
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Management Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) Report (o)

technology = the henefits of which can be recovered over a long-term. Shifls e product preleresce due Lo
yarions reasons such as technological changes, new product substitutes, otc resnlts in the vialalily of the
project,’ unit eing affected. The management is carefully watching the leclmolugical development and shall
ke advantage of the same al every opportunity available.

4. Long Gestation Period: A major challenge in he nvestments in industrizl venlures 3s the relatively long
wesialion perieds, which affects the performance of the parent company. Al Anwar has chosen Lo el witly
this izsue by investing in a portfolio, where e diversily reduces the impact. [t is also inle mitking a consciots
effort in expanding capacities in product markets where the Investee Company has expertise, whiche alse
goes to reducing the risks, Al Anwar thws conlinuously zssesses and manages the medium ferm strategies
and monilors the performance of the investec companies and projects, aginst e ameslic-lern plans

With the policy shift of managing investments rather than companics, the aforementioned lisis are minimizel G
a great extend as all industrial investments shall be monitored periodically on ils relatbee position i The sconemy
and ineome peneration capahilities in the long ron, Wherever, an investment fails the acid test of its continuande
im e investoment basket, all efforis would be nuule w lind allerpate solutions.

Threats that the managettent foresee are:
1. In il bazed econmmy like ours, the fall in oil prices may change the local and regional economic
SCEAnG,
3. Ower exposure of investments in the manufacluring sector poses s threal of cyelic nature ol the

ieclusley.

The management has aleeady obtained Board approval for the following actions to miligale or reduce the mpact
ol various threats like:

1. geographic dispessal of investment portfolio o counlrivs that are nol oil dependent,
2. preparing for competition by crealing a niche in the insurance sector and

4 realigning the investment portfolio with major focus on linancial services sector, lovestment policy
approved Lvs down Uil each company, industry, group, country or vegion will have limited exposure.

Analysis of segment-wise performance:
The company bas analysed s performance ias [cdustrial zepment and Investment Segroent, Indosirial seginent

reflect the performance of the investee companies and ITnvesiment segment aceounts tor the transactions
concerning the parent company, A detailed analysis is provided in Schedule — Dimder notes Lo aceoun

[,

Internal control systems and their adequacy:

The Company has adeguate internal controls commensurate with the size and mature of operations. A financial
manual of autharities approved by the Board 35 in place, which specilies authority levels Doe various day 1o day

QpErations.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) Report (cond.)

Discussions on financial and operational performance:

The Campany has posted a nel profit of K02 185,000 in the current vear as against (e profil of RO 394,000 Ls)
vear registering a record growth of 455%, 41% of the oot profit has come from sale of investmentz, Profit on sale
of investmen! has increased to KO 845,000 Irom RO 206,000 clocking a growlh of 2025, The performance of all
the invester companies was salisfhciory during the vear 200007, Subsidiaries income mereascd o B0 56075
miidlion from KOy T1EG millios in the previows vear, The meun reason s conselidation of Kapeo financialz for e
first time since it attained the status of Subsidiary duding the vear 200607, whereas during the previous yvears il
was categorized as Associale. The linancials of A Anwar & Blank Compeany SAOC i nol consolidated during the
year 200607 die o changing of its alalus rom Subsidiary o Associate,

The realized gains from sale of iveatments are mainly doe to disposal of entive holdings in Oman Abrasives
LLL and sale of G0% stake in Al Anwar Blank Company SAOC. These transactions have resulted in a profit of RO
E05,000.

The parent company’s loan outstanding amounts o RO 1398000, mosty drawn for making (resh investments,
Further new linancing pattern were developed, keeping in mind of the investment strategy which would cater 1o
the overall development of Al Anwar Holdings. The Company has received significant support from its Bankers,
for itself and its Investee Companies, Al Anwar continues Lo enjoy a good credit-waorthy relation=hip with them.

Dhuiring 1he vear there las been a signdicant imvestnend i new projects - in Insurance and the Ceramic Seclor, a5
well as into Subsidiaries. The implementation effort for many of these has begun, These being medivm-term Lo
Lomg-Lerm mvestments, the Company expects (o gel good returns feom them in the COMMITE VEArs,

Al Anwar's endeavor is to enhance the returns from investee companies, male investmoents in projects with Low
geatation period and evolve atrategies oamprove the existing vield on invesimenis,

Krishna Kumar Gupla
Chiel Executive Ofcer
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NOEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS
OF AL AMWAR HOLDINGS 28006 AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

Wea have aucited the accompanying finarcial slatemerts of Al Anwar Hodings SA0G (e Parent Company™) 2nd the
consolickated financial statements of Al Anwar Heldings SAGSG and its subsidiaries {"the Group™) as at 27 March 2007
which comprisa the balance sheels as at 31 March 2007, the in-:f:-n_'n.q atatemants, 5Igl-:n'rcn'.s of changes in squity and
cash Mow slalements for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounling poiices ard athar E_-xpl analiony
soles. These financial stslements 26t oul on pages 235 1 55 are the responsibility of the Marem Compary’s Board ¢
Dirackors

Board of Diroctors” Responsibility for the Financial Staterments

The ftaard of Direclors of the Parend Company 8 responsible for the preparation and fair presantation of ihoese
financial sislements in accordance with International Financial Reporling Standards. This sesponsibilily il'i-:':l.'dE:E-Z
designing, implemanting and maintaining internal conlral relevant 1o the prepaation ard fair presantation of financia
stalements thal are fres from material misstaternant, whather due 1o froud o errorn, sélpcling and aoplying approprials
accounting palicies; and making accounting estimaltes thal are reascnabile in the circumstances.

Auditer's Rasponsibibity

Our responsibiity is o express an opinion on these inancial slatements bazed an our audil, 'Wo conductiod our a-.n_nlnl
in eccordares with International Slandards on Audiling. Thess Standards requirg et we comply swaks &lhica
requirements ard plan znd perform the adit to chtain reasonabie assurance whather the financizl stalaments g
Ire Arom matarial misstatemant.

An audit invalvas perdarming proceduras t obltain awdil ewdence abezut the 2mounls amd o scosures i the Enanos
siatoments. The procedures selected depend on the auditors” judgment, incleding he assessment of he risks of
material misslatement of the financizl stalements, whather due o fraud or error. In making hose sk assessmeanlts
the auditor considers intermal conbrgl relevant 1o dhe entily's preparation and fair presentation of the Fnancis
stalements In order to design audit proceduras that are apprapriate in the cireumatances, but nol for e purpose of
expressing an apinion on the effeclivensss of the enlity's internal conlrol. An audil also includes evaluating the
aporoprialenass of accounting policies used and tha reasonablencss of accounting csl matss made by managerment
as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the linancial slalements,

e Baliove that the audit evidence we heve oained is sullicient and appropriale o provide a basis for our aodis
Op nion.

Cipinion

In aur opinion, the Parent Campany's and the Group's financial stalements present fzirly, in all matenal respects, the
financial position of the Parent Company and the Groug as at 31 March 2007 and the results of the cperalions of the
Parent Company and the Group and heir cosh fows fior tha year then ended in accosdance wilh Inlermahicnal
Finangial Reporing Standsrds,

Feport on Regulatory Reguiremonts

The Parent Compary's and the Group's Tnoncal stzlements slso comoly, in all material respects, wilh e relevant

recuiraments of the Commercial Companies Lew of the Sultanate of Oman, 1974 (a8 amendad) and the releyant
disclosure requirements for public joint slock companies issusd by the Capital Markat Authority.

J.:ajrl*.'-i-.;., Yy

3 -~ L - = ad
AT Y T"AJ/, T e
o -

13 June 2007

v

it b 2y, TR - 2
| % 53 Bee: 430, po0ag s * ,l o
Ml Sullansle o7 Zovks ‘: ."I

& rervs we
Bl Sepdeai
Insrnpmomil Lnird
[ e TR
sizn oy bawl
= Crammesis] Bogiiinan W00 142108 e A

= Hogumea Mo il W ek ST



=)

ra

6/_‘ Bpe e 2 ARl LN
e AL ANRAR NOLIINGS SA00

Balance Sheet

ab 31 March 2047

ASSETS

MOHI-CLUTTEL dssels
Propesie, plant and equipment
Intangible ass=eis

lrreesimenis

Total nan = current agsets

Current asseis

lrpeestonenls

[ stment property
Inweniores

Aceounts and olher receivables
Bank balences and cash

Tetal current as=cls

Tirkal svssris

SHAREHOLIERS" FUNINS ANL LIABLLITIE=

Shareholoders” equily

=hare capital

Logal reserve

Retained carnings

Fair value reserye

Sharcholders” interest atlribuatable oo
Sharcholders of Parent Compamy

Minarity [nteres:

Total aharcholders’ equiby and minority inferest

Liahilities

Miomecureent lalsaliies

Term leans

Deferred tax hakaliny

Emplowvess’ end of aervice henefils
Taolal nom = current Balalites

Current liobilitics

Fiank baorrowings

[ [oains

Accounts and elher pavables
Taslicen

Total current Balilities

Total lahilities

Tovtal =harehaolders" fonds e Tadalites

MNet pasels per shore {in Baisas)

Lal
100

14
21
23 hy

14
12

13

15

Farent rel
Cercp Company Lo Compnny
ALY ALY AL S0
RO BTG RN RUFIHH]
0155 .l ST 11
1,575 - ] -
4,171 10,341 3, 77k LR
14,534 n4la 0,58 H7A3
246 243 M 7
A5

T A
13817 alT 4,346 20
24% 1,345 A3 : "l'i
il LT T il
0,248 L2521 7,0 b I S
7ol T b U0 N
1,050 a1l i i
2 BET 2,311 L TR

L1 (5
11,388 A1 1,2k T.232
4,357 - 1,214 -
[h,045 a1z Ao T.232
1,672 AT L] 11K
A0 - by -
a7 I IEL 1
2,155 Aas Lab4a A0
5588 - d2EE =
i B 712 100K 13
14,411 309 282 a0
24 - 7u -
21,554 1,021 H L R
s 1,Yud LholE 2ARNL
F9. 238 12521 157,500 L S
145 1440 1385 145

Thicse foaneial stalements were authorisad Toe issee and approsved Ty the Beard of Directors on 02 June 20007 and wers

simned on their boebalf bae:

Chairman

Thee graehed notes 1o S0crm pact of these inancial statcments.

THrecTor
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Statement of Income and Statement of Basic Earning and
Dividend per Share

foar chaee wisar eocles] 31 Marcl 2007

Parcnt arent
Gt Company ot Cornpany
2L 200 ZILHIE ZLEMA
S L] L] B [
IMCOME
Operating ineome 2 35,07 11,022
[ivicend meame 2l 143 aTd 133 444
(her income I Al 10 1hH il
365,081 : Tl 14,214 Y|
Clperating cxpenses {33,528) (201) (11,204 {1500
Cargss operaling prolid b 05 alnd Y AEd
Finance ehiarpes (B431 (74 (3511 79
Share of prafita in the resulis of assoaciates 5 1) 1063 - (17
Prolit on disposal of vesimenls Eall bt Fa i 20 it
Ofher expemnses 19 (34 (34 (Lan) {107
Profit before L 3,364 1,265 3 458
Taxation 2l (272) - ()
a4, 7 1,265 ’Jrh . kL
Pinority interest 11 (930 = (154)
Net profit for the vear 2,167 1,265 394 148
Basic earnings per share (in Baizas) LG 30 17 B 10
Dividlend per share (in Baisas) |l 20 20 B O

Tl aflached oootes 10 30 fort pact of these linwneial statements
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Statement of Changes in Equity

for the vear epded 21 March 2007

rroup

Share lgral Retained  Fair value

capital VERETVE EArnings NEEES e Togal

[0 SN RV [0 TG [RELTH]

[oete 10ad | [oone 1001} [roondes 108273

A 3T Mareh 2005 RN Fi 1,171 - T
Met prolit for the year - - 0| - Ba2h |
Transior i legal roserve a0 1)
Thividend paicd during the wear - - (73 - AT
Share of tair value reseryve Inan assoeciate
recopised during the vear - - - o fia)
At 31 Murch 2006 ) ":_'ffr!""l - _'.:'Z_‘-.'_ _Llad (Y] G
At 31 Mareh 2004 HRLU Tis 1,140 () (3 =40
Addiional capital mrodvced taowgh vighis izsge 2,040 - : - 2,440
Mot prodit [or the year - - 2167 - 2167
Transfer io legal reserve - alh LY REY) - -
Thivielend paid doering the vear [note 17 &) - - REAEY] - (3E0]
Share of Ear vahoe reserve Inoassoeiales wnd
subsicdiary recogmized during the vear i3 _ 16
Al March 2007 7,700 L0am 20527 11 L1355

The attached notes Lo 30 form part of these financial slatements,
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Statement of Changes in Equity
for the year ended 31 March 2007

Parend Company

Share largral [&rrannied
capal P e TN Tiotal
[l 20 o [N ELAN] B

[retes 10kad ] [ooge 10 k|

AL 3] MMarch 2 A i 1470 £ A
Seel prolin foe e vear = = At 405
Transler to legal rescrve - 50 il -
Diaviclend paid doring the vear = = [A7h) (R
AL EL Mareh 2004 R LA [F5 1.5 7232
A 5L March 2004 FRLI E58 T PR
Acldational capital introduced throogh rights msue ER L g7
Mt profit far the year 1,260 1,265
Tranzfer oo legal rescrve 127 (127

Dividend paid doring the vear [mote 17 a)] [385] (ARl
At 31 March 2007 7,700 211 2,301 10,812

The ateached notes L oo 30 form port of these Gnancial slatements
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Cash Flow Statement

for the vear ended 21 March 2007

Caanip
ELL
T8O
CASH FLOWS FROM
OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Diviclend incomee and casl receipls rom sales 31E14
Cash paied towards operating and other pxpenses (2E.0670)
Cash generated from operations 3.2345
Finanee charges o)
Taxation L
Nelcash generated from / (uged ind aperating activitics }Fg.u
UASLHL FLINWS FRON
INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Pourchase of plant and equipmen {2553
Diaposal of plant and eaquipment 27
Adldilions W inbagrible asse
Proceeds from dispoesal of investments 1,001
Purchase of investments by Parent Company [1.5H5EY
Mt cash used in nvesiing activilies : 1_:5'!"3-}
CASH FLOWS FROM
FIMNAMCIMNG ACTIVITIES
Adddditional capital introdiuced and movemend
i currenl acooumnl 2,700
Mol mesvenent in curcenl accownt of a subsidiary 558
Dividend to minority shareholders of a subsidiary (114)
Dhvicend by Parent Company (A33)
Mot mveement i Llerm loans (1,114
Mot movement in bank boreowings 1,210
Mel cazh generated from fnancing zolivities 24855
Ioerease S (decreased in cash and cash s
ceuivalents during the vear 1,854
Cagh amd cash couivalents at the beginning of the vear e
Arizing on peceunl of acouisition amd disposal of
stake in suhsidiaries B
Cash and cash egquivalents [note 2 j}] at the end
of the year 2,432

The attached notes o 30 forim part of these fnancial slaiemels,

Parent
Company
A0
BN

G4
(164
I

L8]

(12

1, (K1
{1,968

(70

2,000

(325)
(G71)

1,644

I a2
203

1,345

Parent
Carnap Carnuiny
HINHE 2IHIE
(AL 1 RN
11487 T
[NR AR (e
G EAE| -]
(i (v
{13
(13 L
(57T) o
i
(1) N
HI0 G0
) (AR5
4 b 1H) (2177
T
(75 -
(A7) 1575
[T 1,51
a0l

2141 [A37

Cad) [3A7]

ah5 ]

263 263
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
for the year ended 31 March 2007

LEGAL STATUS AND PRINCIPAL ACTIVITLES

[ and reeistered o the Sultanate of Oman. The business activifies of Al Anwar Molidingss 5A00G ol '
subsidiary companies (logether referred 1o as the “Group”™ and defined in nete 53 include promaotion of and
participation inwvariely of venbures in the financial services el anndusneial sector in the Saltanate of Oz,

Al Anwear Holdings SA00G (e “Parent Company”™} is an Ol joind stock company incorpaorabed o 20 Decenibe

SIGRIFICANT ACCOUNTIMNG ORI ES
Brasis of propacation

The financial statements have been preparved in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standarda
issted by the International Accounting Stndards Board (LASE), Interpretations issued by the International
Financial Reporting Interpretations Committes (IFRIC, the recpuirement= of te Commercial Companies Law of
the Sullanate of Oman, 1974 (s amended) and the cules for disclosure requirements prescribed Ty the apital
Markel Authori.

In thee cureent vear, the Group bas adopted a)l applicable new and reviscd Standards and Interpretations issuerd
by 1ASH and the [FRIC that are effective for secounting periods beginning on or after 1 Janoary 2006,

Cerlain new standards and amendments o exiztng slandards bave been published el are elfective ol
mamdatery for aceounting periods commencing 1 January 2007 and thereafler, which the Parent Company's Board
of THrectors have decided o adopt from the applicable accounting perind. Those standards and amendoments
relevant o the Group's and Parent Company's operalioons are as ollows:

o[RS T Tinancial Instruments: Disclosares' requires the disclosore of the significance of Gonancial st ents
for an enlity's financial position and performance. It requires the disclosare of gualilative and quantilative
informalion aboul exposure to risks arising from financial instruments, inchading specified minimum
diselosures aboul credit risk, quidite risk and market visle, inchuling aensitivity analysis o market risk.

s Amendment o LAS 1 Presentation of Financizl Slatements - Capatal Dizclosure” redquines an entity to disclose
infommalion that enables wsers of s Goaccial stalements 1o evaluate the enlity’s objectives, policies and
procesacs for managing capatal,

s [FES 8 Operating segments, which becomes effective for pesiods commencing on or alter 1 January 2008,
The new standard may cequire changes in the way the Group discloses nlermmation aboul (s operaling

SO TH S,

The |,|'|||,:'§,“'ing :1("'.'"'”"11i[|I.."l:ll:l:i';.'lll'l:\-.lﬂ.""".' Feen |_'|_:.|'|3-'\.iﬂ||_:!||_|:\.' .\'J_'|:||:||_i|_'d in dl_'i,l.lj-ll_l:i; withy ibems comsidered malerial to 1he
Ceronp's and Parent Company™s Fnancial statemments,

ar Hasis of accounting
The Tinancial statements have been prepared under the historical enst convention, except that investments
a1 fair valve throngh profil or less, nvestments availalde for sale and investment property are stated at their
fair walues and the held-doanaturiy investments ancd Government soll loans are slated at armorliscl cost,

31 Basis of consolidation
The consolidated halance sheel incorporates The assets and liahilities of the Parent and ivs subsidianes.
All significant inler-compmy balances, transactions, income and expenses have heen climinated o

comsnlidanion.

Intra-groun balances and rransactions, and any unrealised gains aising from infr-group ransaclions,
are eliminated in preparing the consolidated Anancial statements. Unrealised paing or losses aising rem
Lzrsactions with associates are eliminated 1o the extent of the Group's interest in the enterpeise.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (contd.)
for the vear ended 31 March 2007

STGMNIFIOAN P ACCOUNTIMNG POLICTES {fcontd.)

o Imvestmenis
Swhsrdinry
A subsiciary s acompany inwhich the Grovp exercises conteel, The (nancial statements of the subsidiaries
are rvclwded o e consolidabed Gnacial statements, In the Parent Company's separate financial stalements,
the investments in subsidiaries are careied o cosl, The pacchase method of pecounting is nsed o accouni
for the acguisition of subsdiames by the Group

Aszoeigie
A entily over which the SGroup ecercises sinificant influence bot not condral is elassified as an associle,

Thee consolidated fnancial stiements inchide the Group's share of the olal recormized gainz and losses
of azsociates on an equily accounted basis, The investment in assaciates are carried ab oost in the Parent
Company's separate financial statements az pes the requireanents of [AS 28 Investment i associates”,

Ieeestments keld to mabarily
[nvestments which are held with a positive ingenl aod alalily w Deold ol aduciey are classiliced as held o
eosaburany, They are indlially cecopnized ab cost and subscouenlly remeasured ol amartised cosl,

Thvesirrenls af fode valie Nroupl feafid or loss

[nvestments at fair value through peofit or Inss are Beld for readiog smvestments whick are acguired with
the intention of short term profit making, They are remeasurved al fzie value afler inilial recopnilion. Gains
and Iesses on remeeasurement are ceporbed inthe income stadement.

Tnvestmends geadable for sale
(ther investments are classificd ps available for zale, They are eemeasored al Gor vilue after nitial
recognition. Crains and losses on remeazurement are reported mthe stadement of changes in couity,

Farr palue measwremens

For wvestments actively traded w0 organized loancial markets, fair value is generally determined by
reference (o atoeck exchange quoted marlet bid peices at the elose of bosiness on the balanee sheet date,
Unguoted investments are valued at fair value when they can be reliably measured; otherwise they are
stated at cost,

Seviddosd facomie
Lividend income from invesiments is aceounted when the right to receive payment 15 esablished, Interest
income on investments available for 2ale is recogmised when e cottlement arses.

Caia on diposgl of Ivucstmekis
Cain on disposal of nvestments is determined by the difference berareen sales proceeds and costor
carrving value and is crediled o tie statement of ncorne,

i) Incangible asses
Crooeil]
oodwill artsing oo acquizidon of subsidiaries and associates is inidally recommized ab cost, being the excees
ol wost of business combinaton over the acguires’s interest in the zet fair value of the identifiable assets,
liabilities and contngent Tabililies, Goodwill iz subseguently meazured al cost less acowmulated impairment
losses, Mepative goodwill 15 recognised inumediazely in the stalement of income, Ingairment losses, 0 any,
i respech of goodwill avising on consolidation of subsidiaries and investment in associales are psseszed on
an annnal bisis
[0 respect of associales, the carrving amount of goodwill iz included in the careving amouwnl of e
imvesinent,
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Notes to the Consolhidated Financial Statements (comd.)

for the year ended 31 March 2007

SIGHNIFICANT ACCDUNTING POLICTES (contd. |

e)

hi

I

Leases
Oiperating lense posmments are revognsed s the statement of ineome on @ siraight Boe Basis.
Property, plunt and coguipoent
i
Property, plan amd cquipment are stared at cost less accomulated depreeciation and impairment Dosses,
Subseguent expendiiure s capitalized only whon it is probable that it will result in increased fulure economic

bepelits, Al other cxpenditune is recopnised in the statenent of inconee 58 an expense as incurred,

Depreciation is charged to the staioment of income on a2 straighi-live basis over the estmared paefal
economie Bves of s of property, plant and equipment. The cotimatel useful ives are as folloas

Yoms
Hanilafungs onm weasarbeobd Eamd S
Flamt, rmacbinery and compeond 320
Mot wednckes 35
Formitme aned frgtares 15

Capitad work ia progress = nol deprecisted
Irwesimeni properties

Imvestment properties are milally measured ot cost mehehng ransaction cosis. Subzequent o nkikal
recopnition imwesiment properies aee stabed ol Bar valee, Grains or losaes arsing from changes in the Bor
viluwes of investinaent is cluded in dhe income sigbement in the year in whilch they anise.

Invizstimient progaertics are derecognised when they have either Been disposed oflor when the ovestiaest
proper s are perimanestly sathdeawn from ose and oo foore bepelil s expecied Gom itz disposil, Aoy
graing of losses on the derecognition of investmaent propertics are recogised in the income stalemend in 1he
vear of derceognilion,

Invemtin i

liveniornies gre siatid ot the lowser ol cosd amd ned realizable value, Mol realissble value 1= e estonated
welling prce m b onkinery course of busness, ess edimatod costs of completion and sclbng cxpines
Covst ol rover muntersals is bhased on U sweighiiod mveraee cosd mectbeed sl inchede= expeiitors mowr m
aoqurng the ipwentorics and Brngng tem W ther oxostmg Lceton snd condition. YWork in progress. and
Ftdhad poads incledes. material costs s, where applicable, an approprote share of overheads boeed on
reormHl apecraling capacily.

Acvounts and ather reoenahles

Accounts reeeivahle originated b the Group, are messored a1 cost, Bad debis are writen ofl o provided
for 2 they arise anil provision is made fur doubtful receivables.

Cash and cash egaivalents

Fuor the pacpose of the cash flow sfarement, cish and cash equivalents consisls of cashoand bank iliees
wilh puglurily of iree inonths from tee balanee sheet date, Bank boreowings, which were earlier classiliod
under cash and cash equivalents have now been considered ander financing activities in the casd low
slaleanend,
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (condl.)
for the year ended 31 March 2007

GNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICTES (eontd.)
Impairment

Fingncial gesers
A cach balanee sheel date, the Group's manageiment assesses O there s any objective evidence imdicating
imepairment of te carrving vidwe of financial assels or noocollectability of receivables

Tmpairment losses are defermined as differences bebween e carrving amounls amd e cecoverable
amounts and are recogmised in the statement of ineome, Any reversal of impairment bosses ar revopmisced ws
o in the statement of incomme, The recoverable amounts represent the preseor value of expected Ture
cash flows discounted at the orginal effective interest eate, Cash flows relating oo short-term reccivables are
ol discownted,

Mo fingucinl gasely

Other than the goodwill arising on consolidation of subsidianes and ivesiment i associaies [refer nole
dl above] at cach balance shest date, the Groap assesses i there i any indication of impairment of non
linancial assets, U oan indication exisis, the Groop's management estimates the recoverable amoent of the
assel and recognises an impairment loss in the stalement of ineeme, Other than for goodwill, the Grodip's
menamerient also assesses U Lhere 35 ooy mdicaticn that an impairment less recognised in pricr years o
Tonger exisls or has eeduced. The resullant impairment oss or ceversals are recoggised oomediaiely iooihe
statement of ineome.

The recoveralde amownd adepled is tee higher of net realisable value or macket value and iz valoe i use
Emplovces' cnd of service benefits

Paymrent is made to Omani Government's Social Securiny Scheme in accordanee with the Boyal Decres
Mumber 7291 (as amended) for Omani emplovees, Provision is made Toe amoonts pavakle wnder the
sultanate of Ohman's labour bow n aceordance with Roval Decree nonther 352000 (as amended) applicatle
fo expatriate emplovees” gocumulated periods of service af the balanee sheet dae,

[Frovisions

A provision 15 recognized in the balance sheer whes the Geoup Bag a legal or constructive obligation a= a
resull of o past event and it is prebakle that an outilow of coonomic benelits will be reguored oo settle 1he
celaligraticrnn, 1 Uhee efbech i msterial, provisions are determined by discounting the cxpected totore cash flows
ab o rate that reflects curcenl markel assessawenls of e tme value of money aod, where appropeiate, 1he
risks speeifie o the Tahilite

Aceounis papable and aceruals

Liahilities are recoeniscd for ameomnls 1o e paid Tor goods ol service received, whether or nol hilled 1o 1he
Cirong,

Crovvernment Term loeans and deferred ineome

Lyt alyes

Thee careviing walues of the inverest frec and low interest Gossersomest ferm loans gsee onote L2 o the leancial
stalermdntsy are determined as e present values of the loans adopting the nterest vales tat cellect dhe
currenl eost of zimilar borrowing on similae Ioan termes from a cormmercial bank.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (contd.)

for the year ended 31 March 2007

2 SIGNIFTCANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contd.

[

¥)]

i)

i)

fimance ey

The effective interest charge arises as a result of aocounting for the fair vidues of the govermnent velated
P s and therefore represents the actual inferest inewrred for the weir plus an oot aeising rom
meeiments in e careying values of (he leans in the vear,

Deferred iRcone
The amount of deforred income relating 1o the governooent werm leans i released to e income <latespent
in such a way a8 1o apread the income over the effective interest clizrge W which il relaes,

Cdperaling e

Chperating income represents The invaice value of goods seld during the vear, net of discounts and returns,
and is recogmised in The starement of incorne, when the significant dsks and rewards of ownership have
Been transferoed 1o the buyver

Fimanece chorges

Finanee charges comprise interest payable on lerm loans and Bank borrowings, interest subsidy, and are
pel of interest receivable on bank deposits, Finanee charges are recopnized as an cxpaense i Lhe shatement
of incame in the period in which they are incurred,

Tivanticn

Tax on the profit or Inss for the year comprises currenl and deferred tax, Cerrent tax is provided in
secordance with the Sultanace of Oman's figeal regulations. Deferred Localion s provided using the abhty
method on all lemporary differences at the reporing date. TS ciuleulated at L L vande=s That are expected
Lo apply 1o the period when it is anticipated the lighilities will be zetled, and 1L is based on the rales dod
Lows) that biawve been enacted at the balance eheet dase.

Teferred bre pssels are recognised in relation e carry Torward loses and unused e ceedits 1o the extent
that it is probabbe that future taxahle profies will be gehieved.

Foreign currencics

Foreign currency transactions are (ranslaled into Omani Kials al the exchange rate providling on the
transaction date. Foreign currency monelar v assets and lizbilities at the balance shoet date are transhted at
the rates of exchange prevailing at that date. Exchange differences that arise are recognised in the statemen?
ol income,

Sepment pepoer g

A segment is a distinguizhable component of the Group engaged in providing products or services (busiess
segment) or in providing products or services within a parlicular econemic environment (gecgrapdical
seprment) which b= subject to risks and rewards that are different from these of olher segments.

Drerivative loancial imstroments

The Growp uses:

a  futures commaditg contracks o bedge ils risk asseciated with luctoations in metal prices relatingg o
E.

[uture zales o custormers foe which the company b lrom cormumbmenis; and
- forward foreign exchange contracks to hedge s risk associated primarily with foreign carrency
nases of invenlory from overseas supphices,

Mucluations relaling o pur
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (conid.)
fow the year eoeled 31 March 2007

2 SHEMITFLCANT ACCOUNTIMN G PEOLICTISS {eond. )

Thiese derivative financial insteuments are inglially recoemi=sed ab fie saloe on the date on which o contmet
iz pnfered into and are subsequently remensured at faic valee, These are carvicd as assets inchided onder

Uracle and other receivithles” when the Gae valoe s positeee and as Babalites neloded ander trale and
clher paviahles” when the e value s negalive.

For bedges which do ot guality for hedge socounling, ay gaing or losses arising rom clunges in the fair
viplue of the hedging instrument are taken directly o the income staiement oo the peniod.

Hedges erhich meet the atvict criteria for hedge gecounting are geconnbed as follows:

Fair valee hedpes

The changes in fair value of the hedged item atiribulable to the risk bedged is recorded as pariof the carrying
value of the hedeed tlem and 15 cecogmised i profic or loss, When an uneecogmized o commitment i
designated as a hedged item, the subsequent comnlative change in the fair value of the firm commibment
atirbanabile 1o the hedied nsk g vecognisen as an assel o Baleliny with o corvesponding gan o Joss
rescerriisen] an thee imeorme statement, The change i Gor value of 2 hedping deveeadive 3= recopnised in the
mCome stalemaent.

Caal floewe Redge

These are incloded in the Balanee sheet al fair value and any resuliang gain or bes s recoemised inothe
statement of chianges o eoquity and subeeguent’y adpsted aeaimst the walee of venters, The Gur widoes of
forward loreipn exchange contraces are ineluded in “zecomnis and cther receiviehles™ o case of voearable
contlraels and “socounlz and oller payables" o case of undavearalle conlrcts,

v Thividend

The Board of Directors recommend o the aharchalders the dividend ta be paid ant of Parent Company’s
pendins, The Board of Direerors takes inte account approqeiate pacameters ncloding the regquirements of The
Commercial Compantes Law while recommending the dividendd.

Drividend distribution o the Parent Company's zharcholders is recognized az a lakilie i the Groop's and
Parent Company's financial stntements in the pericd in which the dividend is declared

wl o Dhrectors’ remuneration (including meetiog attendance feos)

Xl

The Cormpany [ollows the Commercial Comwpantes Low 1974 G amended), and other latest relevaod
directives issaed by CRAL Inoregard o determination of the wmonnl o e paid gz DHreciors remuneration.
Directors” remuneration & charged to e siatement of mcomee o the vear i which Guey relate

Estimates and judgements

In prepaving the consolidared linancial statements, the Board of Threctors is required oo malke estmales
anl sssoamptones which affect reported inccme aond expenses, assets, abilines aond solated disclesores. The
use of available information and application of judgement based on historical cxperienos and other factors
are mherent in the Tarmarion of cstimates, Actoal resulis i the fetuee coaddo dafier oo socl esstimeates,
The Doz of Threctors lest anmually whether gondwill, invesiments mosobsidiaries, associates and other
financial asscls have suffcred any impairment in secerdance with LS GG lmpatrment of Assels’ which
reguire Lee wse of estiiiles,
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (contd.)
for the vear ended 31 March 2007

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Ceromape 200F7

Cosd

Ap AL March 20006

Arisinge on acouisition of subsidiary
Ariging on disposal of subsidiary
Aellitions ducing the vear

Dhsposals S iransfers during the year

At 31 Mareh 2007

Deprecintion

ALal March 20006

Artsing on acoquisition of subsihary
Ariaing on disposa] ol sulsidiarg
Charpee for the year

Felating 1o disposals

AL Mareh 200y

Mot ook value

M 3T Warch 2007

A1 3D March 2006

Caroaeps ZEHMG

sl
AUET March 2000
Achilitinmns during e vewr

Dneposals duning the year
Transfors during the year

AL March 2008
Dreprociaion
At 51 March 2005

L hargre fer the year
Belating Lo disposals

ALET March 400
Mot benle valuae

AR March 2005
A1 31 March 2005

Eliml,

muchinery Fur milire

Buildings an anil Muonor il
leaschold land  equpnent wehicles  fixfures
FELRNELE [E MY 1 HED KLVTHED
11538 G518 134 Al

2053 11,637 g G615

{273} L XA {100 (27

L4 K 1442 T 140

B ffi4) 3 [24)
3.018 16,300 262 1L

UK |34 s a2

1,391 i, A0 47 402

(V1 (A (2] (24]

144 | i bial

(26) Gar (13

1HV 0,500 153 ]

L 145 _ LRl El 252
- 2 197 46 g8

Flunt,

machinery Furniture

Bauildings nn and Melor and
Ieazehald land  equipment wehicles fixlures
(NI RO ] e O [{ SR LIIH
10000 R T 17 420

W Rk 11 40

- () -4}

- 451 - =
1,158 SELE 134 Fli':-l.'l-

S 1,795 a1 124

a7 27 21 A

i N -

SN 1,621 108 Ak

T4 R O |1 T

T3 1.67] JI_.E__ i

Lapital
work in
[T Teatal
AR ELIN] O e
T !_l.!l-.""
1 1L A6
- [
VG 2506
tn LR e
LA g T
- 2 alH
H AN
(305
- 14710
= U4
- [ It
HE W, 15
i AT
Copital
wirk in
PrOEress Tzl
R B00n
ik TR K
18 iy
- (=
(431}
T T
e el 1
_ 143
[:-Il
- 2,30
7 3077
4414 2500
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (contd.)
for the year ended 31 March 2007
PEROPERTY, PLANT AND EQGUIPMENT (conid.)

aveni Company 2007
IFwrnitare and

Muotor webicles lixlures Todal
B{YH0 ROV WK JERRCEY
Cost

Crist
At 31 March 20006 21 W7 i
Melchtions duving the yean 1%k % e
Dhisposals during the yoar (11 B 112
A 31 Marely 2007 20 i a8
reprociation
A 3L Mareh 2006 o 4 TE
Charge for the vear 5 3 H
Eelating to dispaosals (1] 01 (R}
AR 1 March HurT T 3 3
Mol hook values
A3 March 20607 22 3 "5
AL March 2000 L3 4 1z

Parent Company 20046
Furniture and

Wotor vehicles fislures Testal
IR ROF M) HOYIM

Cnst
A A1 Mareh 20405 15 b 41
Aclditions during the vear £ 1 T
ALS1 March 2006 o 67 H5
Iheprociation
At 21 March 2005 4 [rs [
Charge for the vear 4 2 £
Al March 2006 t i Fis
Mot book values
A3 Mareh 2006 13 3 1%
Ar 31 March 2005 11 K| 15

Ve dolbovwing: Pariher motes apply:

al  morme ol thae Sactory budlehimgs o the Coeompoare constrocted on lamd kased from the Public Establishment
lor Industrial Eslates (Mimwa and Busay] Indusirial Bsiates).

Lz Cerimin ol e proper Ly, plaog aod eguipoent pelatiog fo e subenliarmes ace morigaged as security for the
term leans referred toin note 12 o the lnencizl stlements



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (comud.)

fior the vear ended 31 March 3007

INTAMGIBLE ASSETS

Group 2007

Ciorsst

A 31 March 26
Addstions during the vear [rifer note 5 all|
Prspumabs duriomg the vear

AL T Maech 200

Accomulated impairment bss [/ amortizsation
Ar 3 Mareh 2006
Rielating to disposalz

At 3 Maveh 2007
Ned bools values
An 31 March 2007
At 21 Manch 2006

eposap ZUMM

Cost
AL 3T Marel 2005
Aalditions duriogg thee year

AL 31 Mareh 2006

Avcumuloted impairment loss S amaorlisation

Ar 31 March 2005
Becugiised dunng the year

A1 31 March 2006
Moet bk b=
Al 31 Mlech A0S
Al 31 hlevh 205

Lraodwtllon
cugisslidation ol
slsidiuries
B0

#

1355

1519

Technical
lentovee-hrar
le=es
KA

Tewdvemcal
knie-Sors
I
RO00

Tintal

3o

M9
L35
(o)

LEID

30
(545

KiYinmn

450
]

L

na
-
-]
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (conid.)
for the vear ended 31 March 2007

INVESTMIENTS

Iwvestments in sab@idiaries, associaies and invesiments at G valee theough peolil or loss represent compsamies
registered in the Sultanate of Cman and Fewait having linancial ceporting periods that end on 31 December

Ty gires e folloes:-

Subsicdinries

YVoltamp Manufacturing Company LLC and 1= sobsudiary
CVRICT)

Al Ahla Internaticnal LLE & A&

AL Aneear Blank Company SAOC CAABCO™

Al Arverar Compaier Seevices LLC (CAACS")

Aun Packaging Company LLC (5107

Mational Alwminiwm Prodocis Company 5800 (S APCOT)

Associates

St Alwooium Products Company 5800 (" NAPCO"
Criman Dritling Mud Produets Company LLC O
Falean Insouvance Company SA0C CFTC™

Al Maha Ceoramics Company 3A00 CAMOC™)

Al Amvwar Blank Company SACHE (CAARCOM

Imvestments at fair vislue throwgh profic or less
Chimzan Abrasives [LLC COAY)

Computer Sationery Industry 54006 CCS07
Tuager Finance Company 50800

Al Rty lveznment Company, Kowait

The foallowang Tue ey motes agply:

Cramership interest

MW L1 T
% X,
ara2 av.42
70,00 7000
- R
[4K,00 11140
{52, 50 (k.15
51.00

Chanership interest

2007 S
b
Sibd
X HT 22T
324 2778
Ll 200
4I0LIH)
" 15,06
(11 L1l
(k440

Status

Uneepuedad
Thuuetesd
nuacted
nepuedesd
Userpuacied

[,!:.'li|{'\{]

Status

Cruoted
Llnguented
Lnpated
[ingueneed
[ nopuenned

Liguoted
Chunleid
Ot

L nequeoted

ay  Duoring the wear, the Pareonl Compeny incraased s sharcholding in the associzie, WAPCO Trom 34.85%
o 31% and hoe aocordingly become o subzidiaey during the vear, The proportion of aszets and hakalines

aceguired and the resualtant gondwill arising is shown belows

MNomcureenl aseers
Current assers
Momcnrrent Dakbi e
Current liabililies
Mgl m=scts acouired
Last

Crocsdoall {rnete 40

R

2 B
3,185

by ]

[ RE ]
080

3022

(1,306



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statemenlts (contd.)
for the year ended 31 March 2007

5 INVESTMEMNTS feontd.)

The period from which the transactions of NAPCO lawve been consolidated wis based onoa decision o
acaquire a controlling interest in NAPCO that was vellected initially |y conlrolhog the compoaition of the
Board of Dircetors and alimately by acouiring a 51% shareholding.

The Parent Company's Board of Directors believe that the carrying viloes of NAPCCYs assrts amel Habilities
gt the dhades of ;||:u'_;i-5i_lir_:.|| “I_]I_:“\:l:\q.."“;j[l_' Lo their fair values andd i"'.l":"'-":-l'i'].:'lg]!f na fair wiloe -i'.l:!u!":""dllll'lllﬂ HIE

ey

required (o the acquired assets and liabilities in aceordanes with IFRS 3 Business Combinatiens’”.

Furthermore, the Board of Direclors de not eonsider that NAPCO had any intangible assets thal gualily fo
recognition under 1AS 58 Intangible assels” ar the acquisition date, Therefore the excess of the purchiase
consideralion over the Parent Company’s share in the net fair value of NAPCO's identiliable assets and
lililities mmounting to KO 13596 million approximately has boen treated as goodwill.

by Al Ablia International LLC, a subsidiary, coased operations al 31 December 1899 The carrving value of e
investment had been fully written off in the year 20040, In addition, the Parent Company had estallisher
presision for all its Tabilities. The subaidiorys lnancial statements have ool been conseliddated sioce March
AU,

¢ O 3 July 2002, the Board of Directors of the Parent Company enfered inlo an agreement for ransferring
s G interest in Sun Plastics Company LLC to the minority shareholder: Upto the date of appeoval of these
financial statements, the formal transfer of shares w the minority shareholder has nol laken place and the
Foard of Directors oo beliove hat the transfer will be completed during the yvear ending 31 March 2008,
Pursuant to the agreement, the Paremt Company no longer exercises contrel over Sun Plastics Company
LLC and accordingly the aubsidiary has been excluded from consolidation from Plarch Hsd,

fdy  The Group's IDVesimenls comprise:

(o
Ay 200
Guated  Unguaoted Total  Guoted  Uneuoted Total
O RO REyG00 R SRR [N
Non-currenl asscls

Associales - a,130 3,120 Ay 2l AT
Awmilable for sale av av - -
[Ireesiment2 at fair value through

pradit or loss b 134 I 152 I ki
Carrving values 12 3,269 1,171 J.454 3ddt £r P b

Currenl asscls

Assnciates - [E 1t - -

Hasled 1o prpaturie i < 74 07 120 el
Invvestiments at fair vilue Theongh

prodil v loss 4 - 4 45 - 13
Currying values 1 H 1430 246 142 123 205
Teal carrvime viluss L 3,425 417 S 3572 T

Market values

MEaariates - 1,714
- Awailable for sale 57 5

- Mhers s Rk

Lk 258
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (contd.)
for the vear ended 31 March 2007

5 INVESTMENTS {vonid.)

Ihe Parent Company's investmenls comjprise:

Parenl Company
2007 MG
Chuoted  Thoguoeted Total  Cuoted  Thigueted Taonal
SN LITH RO RO FLLRRIKE ARRNEE RO
Mon-current nE8ets

Subsidinries '-1-,4 7 1,655 15,132 [ (I N
Ao inles - Al A0 L 2 o
Biveestients a Gur value tirowgh

profit or loss 80 135 g RiEL Al
Carrving vilues Jaad DL 13,atH A B ] #TI7

Current asscts

M iales - 1 164G - - -
Helid to matrity 7 - 7 T - iH
Iovvestonents ab G value through

prodit or loss 1 - 1 3 3
Carrving values i 166G 243 ™ - it
Total careying values L4009 5 g 10554 B M 506N A

Markid vialues

- Subsidiaries 4,74 -
Asancinles . 1.714
Dilers 932 3]

3,720 1.7

The Group's quobed imeestments are listed on the Muscal Securities Market and B35 of the inveslinenis
Gall within the fnaocial aod mvestment seclor (2006 - 91% was ander imdustrial and oo Gwetaring seeior
clasaitication),

The Parent Compainy has sold ies TR oomerahip in 05, ar & net eonsidersian of RO 1445285 resulling in a
pradil of HOF G 2R Gndisposa] of The tnveshment (node 200,

Pheringy the vearn, the Parend Company ineressed ils sharelodiling e FIC, i gssooate oo 27,785 1o 320015
Thie carrving value of G ovesbment ab dhe balaee sheet date amsunted w BC LERS million (2006 — KO
Lt million) in the Parent Company™s Tnancial statements and BOO1O5 million (2006 < B0 1504 millian;
in the Ciroup™s financial statements,

[neludded i unguoted associates iz an vestiment oede By (e Parent Cowgany during Qe previows vear
in AMCC, woestablish o pew cermnic file manwfacturing facility in Oman, The assoeciate s expected 1o
commense s operations by June 2007, The carrying walue of the investment ac e balance shoeel dale
ameaned o B OFEE0 C006 - RO 79,2000 in the Pareot Company’s linancial statemwents and BO 570,800
(2006~ RO S70E00 in the Group's lnancial statements. In aceordanee with an agreement fo provide
ranagement serviees o AMOC for a foe, the Parent Company is cemqaieed 1o mainton s shareholding
Lhe mssociate sl a oanimmo S0%,
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (contd.)

for the vear ended 21 March 2007

INVESTMEMNTS (cantd.)

il

g

1}

a)

-
¥

Thisingg the yesin, thee Parend Company acguired additional 405 owners=hip i AABUG [oeaotal consideration
of B0 1 from g mingrily sborcholder which creased e shacebuoddiog froom 500 0975, The Parent Company
alzo accquired the remaining 3% stake o aotler minoraty shaveholder abaoel consideration of KO S0,00H),
The Parent Company disposed S0% ol ks owoerslop ata sel consideralion of KO CSRE06E which resulied ina
prolital O 182 53596 gn dispoesal (oote 200 and secordingly AABCO coascd to be a subsidiary.

Subsequent o the balaee sheet date, the Parent Company bas accepted an offee for sellng ils entire 220657
coanership in QDR for a comsideration of RO PR0000 and the iovestment has aoeardingly been classificd
pndler current assets, Thi offer wall ke subject o the reles and regolations governing the shareholdings in
limited Jabiliey companies as per the Commercial Companies Taw, 1979 (as amended).

[vestments in subsicdiaries ol associates having a tofal careying value of BCY 1 C05 - KO 1) are regrstered
i thes name of & related parly for and on behalf of the Parent Company

The results of as=oviates for hnancial vepornng peviods that end on 31 December are sommerised s
follows:

RN E LN 1000 RN JEERH RN TEEITH AR IL]]
Asls Tiahilitaes Bevenne
200K 05 A0 A N 2005

R 'O BO ROCGD RO ROVEG RO ‘000

CRT 1,260 [,208 413 ana 2,154 045
IFIC L1526 3 e s LG (755 2045
ARMOC 3250 265 213 -
AABC 830 G1n 335 and 3z S

Share of profits in associabes Tor Gue Growp s as Iollows;
Lo {rroup
oy AL
[ T

MAPCO :: (74
CME a1 ®i
FIC o 20
AARCO [45) i
Al {7 =
[0 (1in

Details of quested investments in which the market valoe excecds WG of the marked vadue of the Company’s
pverall quoted marketable investment pordolio a2 at the balance sheet date are as follows:

Pesree g
uf thes vverall rernher of Market valne Carrving value
pearifolio srcuritios R ROy
AP H3E8%, 17,115.870 4,763 AL

Incluced i other mvestments iz g 005 ownership of Al Aowar Telephone Services LLC whichy s umader

voluntary lguidation. As the Company had not undertaken any commercial actvilies, te Parent Company
was nest ealled an o contebute capital,
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (contd.)

for the wesr enced 31 March 20407

WWESTMENT PROPEETY

Investment property represents Lond beld for sale by a subsidiary company, The  lamd s slaled al s lair
value at KO 5000 which has been determined bascd an a valuation undertaken by a professional valuer,

INVENTORIES
Farenl Maren
o Coampany LT Cuanpany
2007 A7 A R
RO ROnn RO RO
Raw materials e - N T -
Waork I propress 1444 - 132 -
Finishel moods RoT - i
Less  Proviston [or imventaries ; 1’_]3!:] LT
it 2,758 2

The following further notes apply:

a)  Finshee goods af the Balance sheet date represent 9 davs avernse sales (2000 = 5 davs),
bl Movemsntin the provision ler invenlones is as ollows:

Harent PFaremt
o Loanpany Coronpe Lanmipsimy
200rY b A r A0 210G
R FOHH IRE O R0 RO
AL the beginning of thee vear 14 - 134
Arising an acnuisition ol aubsidiary 21
Prosdded during the vear L5 - Hh -
Feleazed fo the statement of ineame {6 : (2 -
Al the end of the vear 1535 - e
ACCOUNTS AND OTHER EECEIVARILES
farent Faremnt
Ceroanape Company [y Coampany
2007 00T A FIHM
[N RO'go RO WL KL FIHED
Acconnts receivisliles 12677 - 40710
[rnpeirmment provisions on accounts receiville
|5 mnie ) ) [156G]) - (123 -
14,521 - 390G -
Trdtial pulldic offer sobsceripion ameosat 2R 255
Prespayimienls ol ciler receivaliles T4 195 285 o]
Armounts due from related pertics [note 28 d1 5 A 7 177
13817 517 1345 26
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (contd.)

for the vear ended 31 March 2007

el ACCOUNTS ANDY OTHER RECEIYARLES {cont.)

a)  The changes in the impairment provision are as follows

Parent Harent
Crroup Company rug oy
20007 2007 2006 pat
LN LAY A"t FOERIHY [EAR R
Ad the hegimming of the vear 125 28
Met effect arising on acquisition and
disposal of ownership in subsidiarnes 10 -
Provided ducing e year 17 - S o
Reversed during the yewr - - hal -
Al the ened of the vear 156G 123
0 BAMK BALANCES AND CASH
Gronp Compny Caronape Comipany
2OHNT 200FF AH G MKl
TR0 T I FCRA MY ROFRID
Cazlal Baol:
current accounls 4T 1589 LG 14
- Ddeposit accounts 1,773 L 156G 7l 239
Cashoin hand 10 4 & -
9 432 1345 2R3 53

i) Deposit accounts earn interest ab conmmercial rales G065 = commmercial mafes),
by Dleposats of the Groog inchodes RO GLE G400 (2006 - RO 959238 held in forcign correncies (U5 Dollar, Faro,
GEI and United Arab FEmicatea Dichams).

10 SHARE CAPITAL AND KESERY S
al  Bhore capital

The authorised share capatal of (e Parenl Comppany cormpeises 200,000 000 G006 - 2000000 shezres of TR
Do CF0060 - 10 1 each, Thes pssaed wned fully gl ap share capital consists of 77 Q00 ERD (000G - B G THE
shigress ol 106 baisas (200G - SO0 1) each.

The share capital was increased during the year by a right= issoe of 2,708 000 shares to thae sharehalders a
03 1020 per share (inclizding share is=soe cxpenses of KOO0 per shared as approved at e Exiraordinary
General Meeting hebl on 10 Maw 2000,

Durdng tee vear, e Shaceholders appeoved o vesolulion feea share split. Aceordingly the total number of
shares mpcreased Lo 77000000 (20068 - 500,000 shares) and the nominal value was redueed to 100 baizas
por share (2006 - RO 1 per zharel,

At thee balanoe sheet dale, detalls of shareliolders, who own 10% o5 more of the Parenl Coanpany’s shase
capital, wee as follows:

Hany SO0
Munleer of (F Mumber of ()
shares held shiares held
Fincorp Imvestment Company LLC 22,551,140 e B 1,50 AR AL

Financial Services Company SA00 ¢
Trust £ Cull LG 02,000 21,30 1,151,000 £3.02




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements icontd.)
lor the vear ended 31 Marcly 2007

10 SHARE CAPITAL AND RESERVES
by Legal reserve
Az requiresd by the Commercial Companics Law of the Sultanzaie of Oman, 1974 (as amended), 10% of the
profit for the vear of the indiadual companies (parent and subsidiaricsl has been transfereed o the legal
remer v unlil the amount of legal rezerve eouals one ied mdwidual companies’ paid vpcapital. The resere

i oot avwilable for distrilaution.

The Balance at the end of the vear represents e omowds relating w e Pareol Company and i1z share of
legal reserve of the subsidiares: since aeguisiiion,

1 Fair value reserve
The Group has recopnised s share of fair vidue reserve of the associaies and o subsidiar,
11 MINORITY INTEREST

Mimorily interest compriges shave of resulls ol nel gssels aileibotalles o minority sharctwolders o e Seltwing
subsidiarices:

2007 Ao
Ry O
Resalis MNet aseels e lts [l mssets
RAE [ 335 011 All o
AARCD - - 821 BED
=P (5 LA a5 485
HNaAPC G205 2.780 = ~
nsEn 4,567 L& [,212
12 TERM LOANS AND DEFTERRED GOVERNMENT GRANT
Parem Parent
Laroanips Company {rroup Conmnpany
oy 2007 2N 26
T e B s KA T LA
MNorscurrend poriion
Bk dMuseal S4000 term lowns 1,472 (e faa 160
Coovernrmenl term lowns 00 - 4a8 -
Mon-current tem loans wnd delerred L T
FOVECTUTICTEL ZEriLnt LETS GAET 1,321 406
Carrrent portion
Hankhuscat 5400 erm loans OR2 Ti2 1.05H 1.6k
Hank Dhalas SAQC term oan 1% i | el =
Ceovernment lerm boans L] = Wi
Current term loans 1,145 Ti2 1,505 1,664

Tealal termm logns and delerred govermment granl 2817 1,384 3,226 2089
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (contd.)
[or the vear ended 31 KMarch 2007

12 THRM LOANS AND DEFEREED GOVERNMENT GRANT (contd.
The terms and repaymenl schedules ol term s el goveermmient term boan are as follows:

Cavomaps 20007

Within
Total Gl YERL 1= wears A= s
RiO00 0 MR LN T
Fonletinseat SACHS Lerm Loens 205 0z GG (il
Bank Dholars SA0C 1erm lean 433 133 134 167
Government term loan 260) ol all 1560
8.1 1,145 YAk L
Crroup 2006
Within
Tital QN Year 1-2 yeqrs 3-T yeurs
HCF I R{FIHKI SR Ted W]
BankhMuscat SA0L term loans Fes 1.58:2 1iH1
Bank Diwofar 54040 term loan 366 135 133 Ah
Government term lowns aTa 1] 51 it )
A 14905 A 1N
Parent Company 2007
Within
Todal LI e =2 vears = years
ROFOH R FOIH BRI R XTI
BankMuscal A0S term loans 1,544 12 S avd
Parent Compeany £0006G
Within
Total O7e Yeqr -2 wiars 27 wears
[H000 RN [LARELY RO
BankMuseal RACG torm [oans R L 4K £

The following further noles apply:

41 Bank Dhofar SACG term loan relates oo subsidiary and is secured by a first commercial morigage with
inaurance cover on speciie assets acquired from the term loan, & sccond paripassn change over fixed and
cureent assets and proportonate guaranbe of e Membess,

B BankMuosceat SA00 term Inans inchade o Joam of KO 735,00 whibch s secured by g first churge over the
eqilive assets of the subsidiary™s cxpansion projrel.

ol The Benk Muscal term Ioens amounfing o RO L399 million are sccured by pledge of the shaces in
subeidiaries, associztes and otlwr Investiments,

1y Geeernment term loan is secured by joint insurance and a Grst charge on subslntally all the assets of the
subsidiary,
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Noles (o the Consolidated Financial Statements (conid.)
lor e wear ended 31 March 2007
TEEM LIANS AMD DEFERRED GOVERMMENT GRANT (conid.)
) The total value of the Goseroment Term loan includes its carrving valie as determinesd in accordanee with
the method described in nore 2 g 1o the leaocial statements, B0 217 4295 [2TH15 = ROk 2635570 including
RO 32,572 (2008 — RO 54,3458 being the amaunt of wnamortized deferred income

7 The showve termm Joans carry interest rate ranging from 3% 0 7% (2006 — 3% w0 7%k

ACCHUNTS AND OTHER PAYABLES

Farent *aremnt
Caraug CMmpany Crroup Casinpairy
LA 0T 2L 2IH0G
RO T 0o LARNELE RO

Trade pavables 12413 = 2344
Averuals and other payables 1,544 44 25 20
Aunounts due o related parties [nobe 22 d3 ] 154 G4 173 i
14411 K 2 82 20

During the year, unclaimed dividends amounting to RO 4,064 pavalle [or the year 2006 has been settled by
transler of fndsz o e Dvestor's Troast Fund of the Capital Market Authorios

BANK BORROWINGS

The Parent Company has overdeal Gaeilities of KO G000 GRS — RO S0,0000 Trom g eommmercial bank, Interest
i= charged at comumescinl rales

The subsidiaries have cverdrall, il discowntizg amd an agains st receipt facilitiez at the balanee sheet daie
in the aggregate amount of approximately BO 2,525 million (23005 - RO 5830 million), Interest is charged at rates
ranging from G& 1o &K% (2005 - Libor + 2K o 85%) per annum, Cer tain of these facilities are secured by

¢ ascoond equal ranking chacge on the relaled subsidiary's assels,

* an assignment of certain receivables in favour of commercial Bankas
proportionate pearaniees of the Members; and

hypathecetion of inventories,

NET ASSETS PER SHARE

Met assets per share is calculaled by dividing the nel assels attribatable 1o the shareholders of the Farent
Company by the number of shares ontstanding at the vear end as follows:

Paredst Farem
Lrroup LCompany LETRTITY IR TIRE TR,
2007 2007 S5 2006

M arssesls allvibodable to the sharcholders of the
Parent Comprany (U000 11,188 1E12 [, 500 7,232
Mumber of shares oulztanding al 31 March (60 77 000 T 000 LK) AL

Medd pesels por share (in Baisas) 148 140F 138 145
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (contd.)
for (he year ended 31 March 2007
BASIC EARNINGS PER sHAKE

Rasic earnings per share is caleulated by dividing the net profit for the year atiribatalle to e sharcholders of
rie Parent Company by the welghled average number of shares outstanding during the year. as follows:

farent Parel

LT Lompany e Crmpany

20007 2007 2000 G

Met profit for Lhue vear (REODOM 2167 1,265 Ak JH
Westgrhed average number of zhares

cutstancing ) T2 5 T2 500 BTN e

Basic earnings per share (n Baizas) 30 I7 " 11

PEOPOSEDR DIVIIEND

A cash dividend of 5 baisas per share {2006 — 5 bajzas per share) and stock dividend of 15k (2006 - Nil
amomnding to a total of RO 1,500,000 (2006 - RO 385 (00) is proposed by the Board of Directors, The divaclendd
is subject o the Annual General Meeting's approvil.

al

o

By Trividend e wliare 15 determined oy l:li'-'i.'.l"ifl_l{ 1he divid end :_':T-::||1l.'r!-'u.‘r| {iar the W il RO 1 50 D0 M — | L]
283000 by the number of crdinae y shares of T7 OO0 G066 - 77, IKIO000).

CTIER TNCONE

Iarent HMireni
{rroaip Compiny Ciraup LAY
anog 2007 2N O
Ty O RO 0 H{¥IHH] [0
Inpairmien] provision on anvesiment
i am asaaciate reversed during the year L5 107 - =
iscellamenus 213 i) 158 Ii
IR ; LEG 15k _ lily
(FTHER EXIPENSES
Farenl Pt
Lirog Company g Company
2007 o0y RAlIH SI0H
RO RO RO EERENEY
Timpairment provision i inveshment in an Assooale - 150 107
Amorteation of techinice] Kioweluow Tees ina
suhsidinry company - Sk
Fair value changes in irvestments a4 i

a4 34 1A LT
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (conud.)
for the vear ended 31 March 2007

PROFIT N D= O0SAL O INYESTMIN TS

Farenl Farent
et Comnpany Laroup Lompsiny
2047 2007 2006 20
BTG BP0 ROYH] YR
Profit on disposal of investments inoa sobaaliary
|nole 5idl v 153 = =
Prolit on disposzl of invesiments in associates - - A 2R
Friit on disposel of otber woguoted iovesline
[rote 5 1] 613 2R - -
845 26 2043 200
TAXATION
Harend Farent
Caroup Conmnpany Cardangs Loy
2007 2007 20 2L
RENTIHD LRCERD LK RO
[nenmie statement:
urrend vear's tax [note 21 )] 245 - L -
Praoe years LG = - =
Drefered tax 11 - 11
272 LE
Current liahilivy T
Cuarrent tax 244 A
Mon currend Llability
Desfierre] Lax Talalily {neth EALE = : =7 =t

The follewing friber notes apple:

al  The Group, exeepd for SPC G subsidiary), 15 sulfeel womeeme G al e rate of 125 of talle prolits o
coeesg of ROV 000 i aceordanoe with e oo Gas s ol e Soliamale of Oom SPC 3 exel Danm
o ta for o period of fve peaes o te 31 July 2008,

B Temporary dilferences avising in dhree subsidiamies o respect of depreciabion, mmpatrment provision aml
slow maoving inventories have given vise weoa nel defereed ts habilny of approsomately RO 000 (2006
- [0 2 AN,

o) Provision for taxation has net been made meorespect of the Parent Company a2 the Company Bag beoughi
forward losses from previews vears, The Parent Company's Board of Directors have nob recegnised 2
deferred tax asset arising Irom carry forward taxaton lesses aod amownfing o RO S5 PR GO0 - T
111658 wntl dhey are confident that taxable profine will be achieved Ty the Parest Company,

i The Parent Compsuey's wssessinesnts foe Hhes e vesrs 2005 10 2008 il ol sabsidioes foe the vewrs ranging
feonn 2000 1o 2000 have nal yel been linglised, The Board of Direeiers belicve that additional laxes, if any,
ot the linelisation of asscesment for the above L vewrs sould nof be matersd oo the Cronp's amd Parent
Company's fimancial position at the balance sheet date,
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (contd.)

for the yvear ended 31 March 2007

TANATION (eantd.)

&'-// poE et AL 1
e AL ANWAR HULIING SALIL

) The reconaliation of tesation on the acecunting profil with e teation charee for e vear is as followes;

Ciroup

Aoy

ROFOIK)

Tax chamre e accowntige poelil a apphcehle rales 3094
Adlel: T effect of
Change in teeg rate

Expenses not deductible 3z

Incoses exempl (]

{ithers [1351)

Taxation clare: 272

Harend
Compemy
B007
RO

1H

]

(153)

o
HHH
[ HED

i
(16

|i.rl

Pl

C oy
AU

LN EL

i

HRELATED FPARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Growp has entered into lameactions with entities in which cermin members of the Board of Directors e
an anlerest and are able (o esercise sipnificant influciee, In the ordinary cours=e of business, soch related petes
prowide goods, services and fundiong G e Group, The Group alze provides managemenl seevices amd funding
tn the related portics, These ransactions are entered inte on terms and conditons, approved by the Board of
[Nreciors,

al

Puring the vear, related party ramsactions were as Tollows:

Transactions in Parent Comjuny

Directors” remuneridion and mesting attendance fees ineome
Progect management feas

Purchase of goods and services from an assoctile

Furchase of imvestment ina subsidiaey eom another subsidiary

Transactions in subsidiary companie
AARCCE

atlios

Cosl of =ales

Tt kool f2es

SPC

Bl
Hurehases
Oher expenses
VL

Sales

Parchpses

WANCE
Furclises
Oihier expenses

2007
HOMD

]
ag

|
406

4716

R
[SCTHED

2
o3
2

LaT
KL
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (comd.)

for the year endend 31 March 2007

22 RELATED PARTY TRAMSACTIONS [comntd, )

By The compensition prid to key management perscoans] for the year comparizes:
JH )

ShawT werm e bncrmend benefits
End of servee bencfits

Direciors” remureyation sl merting sl

fewss |see mode <) Melor |

Lerongpe
2007
RO (0

a5z
1z

a2

Parent
Compueny
DHNTF
RO

xr
1

»

PETRETT T
200G
REY OO0

151
%

i |

Parenn
Company
A 1T
B
a1

|

fa

e} The mecting sllendance fees of RO 21300 (2006 - B0 2750 and dircctors” remaomerstion of B0y 12250 (00
= il paid by the Parent Company is subpect to the approval of the sharcholders af the Annual Geweral

Bleeting,

iy The amounts due to and due o relied parties are on noemal terms of credid, considerntion is to be seithed

i cash, amd Uee socanls are unsceeored,

23  EMPLOYEE RELATED EXPENSES

i} Total employes related expenses included o operating expenses Compise

saleries and wages
Diher bencfits

Contribastions to delined conribution retirement

plans for Omeani emplovees
Cost of end of arrvice benefits for expatriale
cmployees

By Movernent g expatriate’s end of serviee beaefits Rabalioy recognliecsd inode balance sheel are

At the beprmg of Hhe prar

Arwing oo scgaesdian ¢ d=posal of sibseliries
Exponaes recogncd in lhs moome

atatement

End of zervice benefits paid

Al the end of the vear

Goromugs
207
RO

L9865
1

43
53
2,322

3 O gggg

[}
ke

o

Hi

LT T
2
R0

f =
Sl

21

27

L4y

Parent
Group Company
007 20005
RO 000 R 000
1) 8
144 i
51 5

) (B
xn 1

—

Group
WY
KL

Parent

L gy
L1
R0

1

-
Bk

as follows

Faren
Company
pe | L3

R i

8 -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (contd.)
for the year ended 31 March 2007

24 CONTINGENT LIARBILITIES AND ASSTTS

Farent Tareni
g Company Lrrong LAy
20007 T AU HEM
S MDA Loy B UL
Curaniees:
Suhsidiaries 5 L % 6T 9 GET
- AEsociiles 1,744 1,744 a
- Others T T fi 7
7063 b 247 *ET4
Lettera of credin by subsidiary companics a.088 - HAL —
Letters of credit and fervward contracts by associates o ey L1y

163, (115 4005 B 2674
T fellowang Doether nole agplies:

A gmarantee given by the Farent Company to seeure a lerm Joan provided by Coan Development Bank 5500
(ODB) 1o Majan Glass Company SAQG (MG [a company hat had earlier been an assoviate| had been seithed
and expensed by a full and final settlement amount of RO 257,142 in the provioos years, On the bagis of o legal
opinion, the Board of Directors initiated a legal action in recovering this amount from MOGC, Turing mid January
2007, the Sohar Primery Courl has rendered its judgment in favour of the Parent Company and has directed
MG pay 2 sum of BO, 257,142 towards ceimburscment of ihe settlement made by the Pavent Company,

Because MOGC has filed an appeal o the Sebar Appeal Court against the judgment ol the privry courl, the
Dhrectors have decided not 1o recagnise the RO 257, 142 as ineome unlil the appeal has been decided.

25 COMMITMENTS

21 At 31 December 2006, subsidiaries and azsociates hivee capital commitments of approximately KO 5157080
(31 Diecemmber 2005 - 10 145 7 18]

By ALST Descemmber 20006, operaling lease commitments of the subsidiaries and associates were as follows:

Al EHTH

[0 Rk

Less than one year 46,534 5,302
Between e 1o live vears 1RV G 226,408
Meare than b years LR R N 37ALN

1, 168 5T LR

260 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Figancial assets of the Group mclede investiments, aocounts and other recetvablez, Dank balances and cash.
Financial abilities include secounts and other pavables, ermpleyees” end of service henefits term loans and bank
lhorrowines.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (contd.)
for the year ended 31 March 2007

26 FINAMCIAL INSTRUMENTS (contila
Ureclin risle
The Growp has & credic policy in place and sxposure e credit risk s monitered on an ongoing lasis. Credit
evglualions are pensrally performesd on sl customers reguiving credit over a certzin amound. The Soeoupe does
ot reguire collateral i respaect of linaoctal assels,
Interest rate risk
The Group manages s exposure fo mterest rate nsk by ensoring that the borrowangs are on a contracted figed
raibe biests, excepl for o e loao from s commercial ank obiaioed by e Paceod Company and o subsidiary, The
Crronp iz exposed 1o interest rate risk doe o flucluations in the market interest rate of this loan.
Market risk
By the natore of s actieines, the Geoup s exposed to loctuations ino marketd prices for acme of ils investiments
The Company manages this risk by diversification of the mvestronents mte different companies and by baving a2
porLican ol s portiolio as uolisted securilies,
Foreign curreney misk
Acsubsidiary of the parent company coters inlo ransactions i U Dollars, Buros 2nd elher QOO currencies.
Forcign currency tisk 1 ooimused as st ol e leeign curveney eansactons gee cber in L Dollars, which
are effectively al lized Bial Qooand rates, or i cwrrencies wsiog US Dollars exchoge rates whicl are lixed or
effectively fixed. The Group enters into forward exchange comtracts W bedge its foreign currency ransaclicns,

Fair value

The Beard af Directors believe that the laie walues ol sl financial assels and liabilities approximale their carrying
vitlu e,

27 SEGMENTAL INFORMATION
Primary reporiing formaf = business sepmenls
Thoe Group s orgamised i the Sultanate of Do mlo bao main hosiness segieents:-

ny  Industrial segment, which iz eogaeed in producing and disteiboting different indusinial preductz auch oz
tranzformers, aluminiis prodoees and printed packaging materials and

B Invesbmenl seement, which is enearsd in o anvesiment i project= and (el oanaes ment.

] 1 Lk ERR]! J
Twvesiment segrment i@ The only Dusiness segment in the Parent Company, hence ol separadely disclosed.
There are sales and other ransaetions between thae bosiness segmenis, Segment assels consist primarily of
praperiy, plant andd equipiment, inventories, receivables, operating cash, and investmenis, Segment linbilities
comprize operating liabilities, Common costz are allocated between the segments en relevand bases such as

Lz clevoled, Lusnoser and space oceupmed,

Financial information in sespect of the segments is presented in the table o pagoes 32 a0l 35
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (contd.)
for the year ended 31 March 2007
SEGMENTAL ITNEFORMATION (comtd.)
Secondary reporting format - Geographical Segments
The Parenl Company amd the subsidiaries operate primarily from the Sulanate of Do and there are no

distinguishable peographical operating segments. However the geographical profils of sales revenue anl trale
srconnls recevalle ot of provisions) based on locafion of customers 1= ahinewen helow -

ST S

Crperating ADeotints Clperaling Acvounts

e Feceivahle TATRIELL Recriviahle

RO (M) RO RO HR) ERNHLY

Sultanate of O and GOC countries 25,35 10,570 675 ra

Others 10,585 1,051 4,233 T
AT S 12521 L1 a

DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Farieged axchange confraos

NAPCO has certain forward exchange conlracts outstanding at 31 Drecember 2006 desigmaled as cash flow
h‘L"‘i.:Igl.'!-' ol p:..:pﬁ-‘]p_"_ e |‘;|||_r|"-'|'|;|__-c;.|3_-: in U5 Iroblac, As al 31 December 2000, there was ne i realised _q'.'l:‘!l'l inchuc el
i equity in respect of these contracts. The notional ameunt of these ferward contracts as of 3l [decembaer ARG
was RO 3080, 100 (2005 = Mat apphicahle].

Forieard commesd ity contenets

NAPCO has certain forward commedity contracts outstanding ar 51 December 206 designated as fair value
hedges of Muctuations in metal prices relating 1o fivm sales commitments, The notional amount of these forsward
commedily contracts as of 31 December 2006 was RO 2671021 (2000 - Mol applicable), Posithee fair value of the
forwared exchange conlracts is included under trade and other recebvables amd negalive faic value of the sales
commitments are inclided wnder rade and others payables.

The termes l:l'[ |h_|.-\. f-:':-l‘x'-?'l"d l"':{l‘:h“-“.h“:: corlracls -i|'|l|.| forsward |_'|:;|'|:||11|::l:,‘|'_|_:r' coniracts have heen nl‘gn::-lizl'.r'd (4 |'I'|i'|.|;.'.|'l
the terms of the cammilmesls,

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

2y Subsequent to the balance sheel dale, the Parent Compeany has acquired 41040,00 shares In FIL from
a shareholder al a price of USD 3,80 equivalent to RO 1467 per share which haz inereased the Perent
Company’'s sharchelding from the existing 32.41% Lo 40,565,

bl Subsequent o the balance sheet date, the Board of Directors of the Farenl Company has approved an
investment of 25% shareholding in a Financial Services Company Under Formation) in Saudi Arabia with
a share capizal of 200 Million Saudi Rials. Financial Service Company (Under Formation) will apply for a
license from the CMAL Saudi Arabiz 1o undertake the activity of Assets Management, Brokerage, Investment.
Corporate Finance and Financial Services. The Parent Company hiss ageeed oo pay 108 of the investment a5
pre-formation fees, In case the Finance Company {Under Formalion) cannot obtain the CMA Ticemesee, thue

COMPARATIVE FIGURES

The figgures of the Group are net esmparable with e previous vears on sccounl of the change in subsidiarics

during the vear on acenunt of eequisition and disposs] of investments [rpte Doajoand Siy).



ﬁ Eope o Al L1500
L AL AKYWAR FOLINRGS S0

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (contd.)
fone the vear ended 31 March 2007

Aehedule 1 - Segmental inforimation

Taclinztrial seEment [nwesliment semenl Ciraup

207 I SO0 2000 QW07 2006

OO HOFTIHI IANEEL KPR RO 2000

Crperading income 36,075 11,028 - - 5,075 AR
IHividend ineoame = - 143 X 143 154

Cither ineome 205 140k 15d : 55 A5 158
Todanl revenne A6, 254 12,031 207 | ER A6BART [ 2116
Dperaring expenses {0k 20K (L3, 165 {1647 {1300 (33,528 11 A0
Ciross Operaling income #0545 A T it 3053 nay
Plinancing costs L] (305) (74 (7] (541 {551
Share of profits of asgocizles - (19 103 . 106 (14
Prafif om sale of investiments - 3 a45 T a5 Pt E
Other expenses - (50 (39} {150 (34] 12T
Profit hefore ineome tax . L8 0E3 125 A.560 343
Tncame L (272} Y] - (273 iy
Frofit alter income s 2,114 453 083 125G 4,097 578
Taoral as=ets 32085 b Tl | T3 ATIR 3958 17,500
L, 3 11 0488

Toral linkilities 21,541 e 1,552 2003
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List of Sharcholders holding 1% and above as on 31 March 2007

Sr. | Sharcholder Name No. of Shares | %
_1 Fincorp Irvestment Co., 1LLC 22551 140 20 I57Y
2 Financial Services Co. Trust/Gulf 16 402,000 21.300%
| 3 | Al Khunji lnvestment LLC 1.470,000 80 |
4 | Abu Dhabi National Food Products 3850000 o8
5 | Ahmed Al Khalfan Al Mutawa Al Dhabird E 3,850,000 5%
6 | National Insurance & Invesiment Service Centre | 3,41_'*51..’“1 - 4.428% -
7 Mohamed & Ahmed Al Khonp | 1652958 . 2.147%
s | .I-lul‘l.'mu:rl Ha.h:-:::lh Ali Al Dhahab 1500 000 | [RITE -
_'.-I_._Hin Omair Investment LLC | 10400, 0h00 1L3G1% ]
1| Chman ﬂunszru.:;m Materials LLC 03,500 1.264% =
TOTAL 59,698 898 77.531%
—






